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YIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC
Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hercinafter
referred o as “the Corporation™) presents this repert logether with its interim consolidated financial
statements for the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025,

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

Members of the Board of Management, the Board of General Directors and the Board of Supervisors
of the Corporation who held office during the period from (11 January 2025 10 30 June 2025 and up to
the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Management

Mr, Mguven Canh Tinh Chairman Appointed on 09 July 2025
Mr, Le Anh Son Chairman Resigned on 04 July 2025
Mr. Do Tien Duc Member

Mr. Neuyen Dinh Chung Member

Mr. Do Hung Duong Member

Board of General Drectors

Mr. Le Anh Son General Director Appointed on 09 July 2025
Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh General Director Resigned on 09 July 2025
Mr. Pham Anh Tuan Deputy General Director

Mr. Le Quang Trung Deputy General Director

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Anh Deputy General Director

| Re ntative

From 01 January 2025 to 09 July 2025, the Corporation had one legal representative, Mr, Nguyen
Canh Tinh — General Director. From 10 July 2025, the Corporation has two legal represcntatives: Mr.
Nguven Canh Tinh — Chairman of the Board of Management, and Mr. Le Anh Son — General Director.

Board of Supervisors

Mr. Luong Dinh Minh Chief Supervisor
hs. Phan Thi Mhi Ha Member
Mr. Pham Cao Nhue Member

Chief Accountant
Mr. Le Duy Duong Head of Finance and Accounting Department
AUDITORS

The auditors of UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited have reviewed the consolidated
interim financial statements of the Corporation.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of General Dircctors confirms that there have been no significant events occurring after
the balance sheet date which would require adjustmenis to or disclosures to be made in the
accompanying consolidated financial staterents.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
Mo 1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Victnam

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT'D)

THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for preparing the financial
statements for the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025 that give a true and fair view of the
interim consolidated financial position of the Corporation, as well as its interim consolidated results
of operations and its interim consolidated cash flow for the period then ended. In preparing these
interim consolidated financial statements, the Board of General Directors is required to:

e Design and implement an effective system of internal control to ensure preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements and to mitigate the risks of matenal
misstatement due to fraud or error;

s Comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietamese Corporate Accounting System and
the relevant legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of the interim consolidated
finencial statements;

e Select suitable accounting policics and then apply them consistently;

= Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

= State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statement;

» Prepare the interim consolidated financial statements on & going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Corporation will continue its business.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept,
which disclose, with rezsonable eccuracy at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and o
ensure that the consolidated financial statcments comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the relevant legal regulations. It is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud end other irregularities.

The Board of General Directors confirms that the Corporation has complied with the above
requirements in preparing these interim consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of General Directors has approved the attached interim consolidated financial statements.
These statements provide a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the consolidated financial
position of the Corporation as at 30 June 20235, as well as its consclidated income statement and its
consolidated cash flow for the period 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025, in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on
the preparation and presentation of the interim consolidated financial statements.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of General Directors commits that the Corporation has fully complied with its regulatory
disclosure obligations under Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020 of the Ministry
of Finance on information disclosure in the securities market; Decree No. 155/2020/ND=-CP dated 31
December 2020 of Government and Circular No, 1162020/ TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 of the
Ministry of Finance providing guidelines on corporate governance applied to public companies.

/@’&.:q‘ﬁjf‘ d.on behalf of the Bogrd of General D.frmar.'r.Lt.f
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
i the interim consolidated financial statements of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - J5C
For the period from 0 January 2023 to 30 Jure 2025

To: Sharcholders, Board of General Directors and Board of Management
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company

We have reviewed the accompanying interim consolidated financial statements of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Corporation™) as prepared on 29
August 2025 and set out on page 10 to 71, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30
June 2025, the interim consolidated income statement, the consolidated cash flow statement for the
period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025, and the Notes to the interim consolidated financial
statements.

The Board of General Directors' responsibility

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Vietmamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and the relevant legal
regulations on the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements and for such
internal control as the Board of General Directors determines necessary to ensure that the interim
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or arror.

Auditors® responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated interim financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese standard on Review
Engagements 2410 — Review of a interim financial statements performed by the independent auditor
of the entify.

A review of interim financial information primarily consists of making inquiries, mainly of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures.
A review is substantially narrower in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Vietnamese
Standards on Auditing and, consequently, does not enable us to obtzin assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.

Basis for qualified conclusion
L At Part of Hai Phong Jeint Stock Company — A subsidiary of the Corporation (“Hai Phong
Port")

As of 30 June 2025, Hai Phong Port recognized assets related to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the
Chua Ve Port container yard under the item "Tangible fixed assets" (code 221) on the consolidated
balance sheet, These assets had a total historical cost of VD 279.7 billion and a net carrying emount
of WIND 142.14 billion. The sources of funding for these assets are recorded under "Long-term Loans
and finance lease obligations" (code 338) on the consolidated balance sheet, with a comesponding
value of VWD 342.1 billion, These ascets belong to Phase [T of the Hai Phong Port Renovation and
Upgrading Project, which was invested in by the Ministry of Transport using Japanese ODA loans
and the Government's counterpart funding.

Auditing | Acoounting |Tu-_;| | Consulting | Traning | Veluation
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONT'IN)
Basis for qualified conclusion {cond’t)

At the request of the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port has temporarily remitted certain amounts
related to the aforementioned project into the State budget, these include: Depreciation of asscts
related to Berths Mo, 04 and No. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard for the period from 2014 10
31 December 2018, totaling VND 44.8 billion, provisionally accrued interest expenses on loans
amounting to VNI 1493 billion.,

In accordance with Resolution No. 71/NQ-CHP dated 12 June 2020 of the Board of Management, Hai
Phong Port has suspended depreciation and ceased recognizing interest expenses from | January 2020
for assets related to Berths No. (4 and Mo, 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard, pend ing official
approval of the management plan for these assets.

Om 8 June 2023, the Company issued Document No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the Ministry of Transport,
proposing the continued assignment of Hai Phong Port to manage and operate Berths No. {4 and No,
05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard, in line with the provisions of Document No, 2313/TTg-KTN
dated 25 December 2013 issued by the Prime Minister.

On 28 September 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Document No. |0RS2ZBGTVT-TC to the
Ministry of Finance for consultation on the drafi Decree rcgulating the management, use, and
exploitation of maritime infrastructure assets (intended to replace Decree No. 432018/ND-CP dated
12 March 2018). In this document, the Ministry of Transport proposed adding transitional provisions
to the Decree to ensure that, if the proposal is approved, it would establish a management framework
for these assets, meaning that Berths No.4 and Berths No.5 at Chua Ve Port would be transferred to
Hai Phong Port for management and operation (not for lease).

On 24 December 2024, the Government Office issued Notification No. 569/TB-VPCP regarding the
conclusions on the incorporation and explanation of comments from Cabinet Members concerning the
Decree on the management, use, and exploitation of inland waterway infrastructure assels.
Accordingly, the Deputy Prime Minister agreed that the Decree should not include provisions for
transitional handling of maritime infrastructure assets formed from state capital and assigned the
Ministry of Transport and the Ministry of Finance to urgently report on a handling plan.

Upon official approval from the relevant authorities regarding the management and operation plan for
Berths No.4 and Berths No.5, the Chua Ve Port container yard, and the equipment package, Hai Fhong
Port will be responsible for updating the financial report data accordingly.

On 27 December 2024, pursuant to Resolution No. 168/NQ-CHP, the Board of Management of Ha
Phong Port approved the resumption of depreciation for Berths No.4 and Berths No.5, and the Chua
Ve Port container yard, as proposed by the Genersl Director of Hai Phong Port in Report No.
4882/CHP-TCKT dated 25 December 2024.

On 03 June 2025, Hai Phong Port issued Official Letter No, 2212/CHP-TCKT to report and propose
that the Ministry of Construction and the Minisiry of Finance agree on a plan to submit to the
Government and the Prime Minister for approval of the management and operation plan of the above-
mentioned assets.

As of the issuance date of this review report, there has been no decision from the state management
authorities regarding the management framework for Berths No.4 and Berths No.3 and the Chua Ve
Port container yard of Hai Phong Port. Therefore, we do not have sufficient basis to determine the
costs related to the use of Berths Wo. 04, 05, and the container yard at Chua Ve Port of Hei Phong
Port from 01 January 2020 to 30 June 2025,
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Rasis for gualified conclusion (Cont’d)

3 Additionally, the Ministry of Finance also requested a re-examination of the equitization of Hai
Phong Port (given that the final settlement documents of the value of State capital at the time of
equitization of the Company have not been approved by the relevant authorities), When there is the
official approval of the equitization settlement of the competent authority about loans and repayment
plans, the financial statements of Hai Phong Port will be adjusted {if applicable).

We have not been able to obtain the necessary documents 1o assess the impact of all the above issues
on the Corporation's consolidated financial statements (attached)

2, At Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited — A subsidiary of the Corporation (Bien Dong)

Differences between the loan principal balance and the loan payable to Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance
Company Limited (" VFL")

According to the independent confirmation letter received from Fietmam Shipbuilding Fimance
Company Limited (“VFC"), the recorded outstanding loan principal and interest receivable from Bien
Dong Shipping One-Member Limited Liability Company (“Bien Dong™) related to the 1730 TEU V22
Container Ship Project are higher than the amounts recorded in Bien Dong’s books. As at 30 June
2023, these amounts were USD 28,667,314.77 and USD 65,684 860.04, respectively, and as at 1
January 2025, they were USD 28,667,314.77 and USD 63,541,824.47, respectively.

The discrepancy arises because Bien Dong transferred the principal debt and accrued loan interest
payable o VFC to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One-Member Limited Liability Company (Bach Dang)
secording to the handover minutes signed on 5 August 2015, with Bach Dang.

Through the audit procedures performed, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence regarding the opening balance, transactions incurred during the period, and the closing
halance of these loan liabilities and interest expenses payable.

Therefore, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments are necessary for these figures and
the potential impact, if any, on the accompanying consolidated financial statements (refer to Notes
No. 20 and No. 24),

The recognition of differences between the principal debt and interest payable to credit institutions
and the debt amount the Company assumed from Viemam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation
(DATC)

Before 2017, Bien Dong applied the guidance from Official Letter No. 751/BTC-TCDN dated 17
September 2015, issued hy the Ministry of Finance (Official Letter 7313, regarding the accounting
treatment of the difference between the book value of debt and the assumed debt value with DATC,
Accordingly, the difference between the debt amount assumed from DATC and the principal debt and
interest payable to credit institutions was recorded as an increase in the State's equity in Bien Dong.

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Deng transitioned to applying the regulations of the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System, under which the difference between the amount owed to DATC and the principal
and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded in the Income Statement for the year.




REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONT™D)
Basis for gualified conclusion (cont"d)

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applied the guidance set out in Circular No. 46/2021/TT-BTC dated
23 June 2021, Official Dispatch Mo, 751/BTC-TCDN dated 17 September 2013, Official Letter Mo.
SE83/BTC-TCDN dated & May 2017, and Official Letter No. 1440/BTC-TCDN dated 8 February
2021, issued by the Ministry of Finance. Accordingly, the difference between the amount owed to
DATC and the principal and interest payable 1o credit institutions was recorded s an increase in the
value of the State's equity in Bien Dong,

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System in
recording these amounts, then in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as st | January 2025, the ftem
“Differences upon asset revaluation” (Code 416) decreases while the item “Undistributed eamings”
{Code 421) increases by VND 2,166.24 billion. As at 30 June 2025, the item “Differences upon assel
revaluation™ (Code 416) decreases and the Item “Undistributed earmings™ (Code 421} increases by
VIND 2,166.24 billion accordingly.

Aunditor's eonclusion

Base on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
interim consolidated financial statements do not give a true and fair view, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Corporation as at 30 June 2025 as well as the consol idated results
of operations and consolidated cash flaws of the Corporation for the peried from 01 January 2025 to
30 June 2025, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting Systern and the relevant regulations on the preparation and presentation of interim
consolidated financial statements..

Emphasis of matters
We draw attention to the following matters disclosed in the interim consolidated financial stalements:

- In Note 1.5 — Corporation structure: The financial statements of Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock
Company, a subsidiary of the Corporation, have been consolidated into the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation
reflect the investment value in this subsidiary as VND 41546 billion. This is the amount the
Corporation has reimbursed to Hop Thanh Investment and Mineral Joint Stock Company (“Hop
Thanh™) in accordance with the terms of the share ownership transfer agrecment.

As of 30 June 2025, the Corporation and Hop Thanh are still in the process of discussions and
evaluations regarding the legal investment benefits of Hop Thanh during their participation in
Quy Nhen Port Joint Stock Company.

- In Note 2.1 — Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements: The financial
tatements of certain subsidiaries and associates, which have been consclidated into the
Corporation's Consolidated Financial Statements, contain significant uncertaintics that raise
substantial doubt about the ability of these companies to continue as going concerns, The
Financial Statements of these entities have been prepared and presemted based on the
assumption of going concem.
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONT'DY

Emphasis of matter (cont’d)

In Note 11 — Financial investments, Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port), a
subsidiary of the Corporation, has recorded an investment in the form of contributed capital by
assets, specifically a 600-metre-long wharf (K6, K7, K8, K%, and K10) at Wha Rong - Khanh
Hoi Port, into Ngoc Vien Dong Investment and Development Company Limited {(*Ngoc Vien
Dong Company”™) with a contributed capital value of VNI 3040,001,000,000 {equivalent to &
5.6% ownership interest). Saigon Port has not been able to obtain the financial statements of
Ngoe Vien Dong Company from 2021 to date, However, the contributed assets, comprising the
over 600-metre-long wharf from K6 to K10 at the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi area, remain under
the management, operation, and commercial use by the Company. Ngoc Vien Dong Company
has committed to bearing all costs related to the management and land use obligations with the
State, as stipulated in the agreement dated 31 August 2017 between Ngoe Vien Dong Company
and Saigon Port. The Board of General Directors of the Corporation assesses that this
investment has not suffered any impairment.

As presented in Note 17 — Canstruction in progress, the investment and construction project of
Cai Cui Port Phase 1 commenced in 2002 with an initial estimated investment of VND 2303
billion. The investment and construction project of Cai Cui Port Phase 11 began in 2009 with an
initial estimated investment of VND 820 % billion. The implementation of these two projects
has exceeded the initial timeline and remains incomplete. Can The Port Joint Stock Company,
a subsidiary of the Corporation, is continuing to invest in order to complete and put the project
compaonents into operation for business sctivities,

As presented in Note 19 — Taxes and other payables to the State budget:

+ Saigon Port has tempararily estimated the remaining land rental fees pavable for the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi Port area up to the time the Company signed an agrecment with Mgoc
Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Company Limited (Ngoc Vien Dong - the
investor of the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Project) under Investment Policy Decision No.
6815/0D-UBND dated 29 December 2016, issued by the People's Committee of Ho Chi
Minh City. As of the date of the consolidated financial statements, Saigon Port is continuing
t0 work with the tax authorities to determine the basis for the land rental and land fax
obligations.

+ Saigon Port has made temporary payments for land rental and land tax for the period from
215 to 2020 at Tan Thuan 1 and Tan Thean 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Dong), as per the
notification from the District 7 Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh City. As of the date of the
consolidated financial statements, the Company is continuing to liaise with the Dhstrict 7
Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh City and relevant authorities to determine the basis for
these land rental obligations.

As presented in Note 22 (3) and 22 (4) — Other Payables: Saigon Port has received capital
advances from the State Budget and Ngoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment
Company Limited to invest in the construction project of Saigon Port — Hiep Phuac, which is
managed by Saigon Hiep Phuce Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of Saigon Port. As of
now, this project remains] under construction.

In Note 22(6) — Other Payahles and Note 24{1) - Loans and finance leascs obligations, as of
row, the Hau Giang Shipyard Project of Han Giang Maritime Services One Member Limited
Liability Company has been permanently discontimued according to Official Letter No,
403/TTg-KTN dated 29 March 2012 from the Prime Minister. Regarding the funding used for
this project, the Company is recognizing restructuring interest basad on Resolution WTNO-CP
dated 10 October 2017 of the Government. However, the lenders/advance providers, including
Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance One Member Limited Liability Company (VFC) and Vietnam
Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), have not yel restructured the debt as per the
aforementioned resolution.

o
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REFORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONT D)

Emphasis of matter (cont’d)

-

In Note 24 (2] - Loans and finance lease obligations and Note 7 — Loan receivables: As of 30
June 2025, the interim consolidated financial statements of the Corporation refleet a loan
receivable from SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd ("SP-PSA™) amounting to USD 4,950,000
(at the Parent Company - the Corporation) and USD 11,880,000 (at Saigon Port). At the same
time, the financial statements also reflect a loan payable to PSA Vietnam Pte., Lid ("PSA
Vietnam") for the same amounts under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated 26 August 2008,
corresponding to a capital contribution ratio of 15% for the Corporation and 36% for Saigon
Port at SP-PSA Intermational Port Co., Ltd. As of the preparation date of the consolidated
financial statements, the Corporation and Saigon Port are still in discussions with the relevant
parties to finalize the contract addendum and the basis for caleulating the interest receivable
and payable accordingly.

As stated in Note 37.3 — Other information, according to Decree No. 126/201 7/ND-CP dated
|6 Movember 2017 of the Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and one-
member limited liability companies with 100%c state-owned charter capital into joint-stock
companies, at the time of officially converting into a joint-stock company, the Corporation is
required to finalize taxes, obligations payable to the State budget with the tax authorities, and
submit the approval request to the state ownership representative agency reganding the value of
state capital at the time of official conversion. Additionally, the Corporation must seitle the
proceeds from equitization, pay for employee severance benefits, and cover equitization-related
expenses. The Corporation has completed tax finalization, For the remaining matters, the
Corporation has completed the documentation and is awaiting approval from the competent
autharities. Therefore, the figures in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements may
change after the final approval from the relevant authorities.

Deputy General Director

Anditor's Practicing Certificate

No. 3660-2021-112-1

For and on behalf of

UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Harvai, 29 Augnst 2025
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Mao.1 Deo Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form No. B 01a - DN/HN
Far the period from 01 January 2025

ta 30 June 2025
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Ax ar 30 Jume 2023
ASSETS Code Notes RIS s 20zs
YND VND
CURRENT ASSETS 100 14,274,961,320,284  13,250,276,250,627
Cash and cash equivalents 11 4 3,916,949,963,530 3.155,012,146,283
Cash i1 1,907,711,681,632 1,.867,525,795,383
Cash equivalenis 112 2.005,238,281 898 1,387 486,350,900
Short-term investment 120 §211,712,207 955 5, 138,550,323,941
Held-to-maturity imvestments 123 N 5, 211,712,207 953 5,138,580323,94]
Short-term receivable 130 3,779,77L,674,096 3,607 375,668277
Short-term trade receivables 131 5 2034 808 049,371 [.744 869 B89 828
Shaort-term advances to suppliers 132 & 787.331,051,858 204, 476,701,248
Short-term loan receivables 135 7 221465000000 203,408,000,000
Otther short-term receivables 136 8 LE03. 722,074,603 1,114,081,771,535
Provision for doubtful short-term 137 9 (371807 332.53T) {363,723,513,135)
receivables
Shortage of assets waiting for resolution 139 4,262 825 80] 4,262,828, 801
Inventories i40 10 497,151 580,908 485 064,150,994
[mventories 141 TOL AT AT, TOE GRS 383,741,794
Provision for devaluation inventories 145 (204,319,590, 800) (204,319,590 800)
Dither current asseis 150 869.375,803,795 TH4,243,961,132
Short-term prepaid expenses I51 16 136,304 886 464 7O 824,461,633
Value-added tax deductible 152 591 345,877,842 545,190,547,000
Taxes and other receivables from the 153 19 141,725.129,489 139.228,952.499

State budget

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 10




VIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form Ne. B 01a — DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025

- | to 30 June 2025
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)
As at 30 Jagre 2025

ASSETS Ciode Mobes I0A0aZ0ES 0112025
VND YD

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 18,969, 756,287,296 17,174,694 382 362
Long-term receivables 2 1 467,090,039,795 1,506,052,730,179
Long-term trade receivables 211 5 B7.B43, 874219 93,500 714,342
Long-term advances to the suppliers 212 6 24,653 398 581 14,653,398 .581
Long-term loan receivebles 215 7 o00,253,003,755 1,080,764,677 466
Other long-term receivables Zie & 454,339 ,673.240 3070349359790
Fixed assets | 10,294,830,162,692 9.100,520,065,447
Tangible fixed assets 221 12 9.600,271.945370 8,401 808,885,120
- Cost 222 30,052,303, 436,780  29.962.641,030,949

- decumulared depreciation 223 (21,352,031,491 4100 (21 360,832,145828)
Firancial lease assets 224 W 43,772,451,569 45,229,712,513
= st 225 JEB 290,437 Bad 38,200,437 844

- dccumulared depreciation 216 {14.517.984.273) (13,060, 735.331)
lnl:arlgihll: fixed aszets 27T 13 650,785, 765,753 (53,481 467814
- Cast 22R D43, 496, 540,043 934, 473,120,013

= Acevmelated amortization 229 (292, 710,774,200} (250,991 632,189}
Investment propertics 230 15 404,008 520,045 A17.002,112,683
- Cost 251 823,333,856,463 801,360,573.617

- Aecumulated depreciation 232 (19,345,327 415) (384 558, 460,934)
Long-term investments 40 17 3,389 306,649,223 3,528,272,652,993
Long-term work in progress 241 39,221 826,904 39.141,592,111
Construction in progress 242 3.350,084.822.319 1489,131,060,882
Long-term investments 250 2958942 331,618  2,220,497,150,565
Investments in associates, jointy 252 11 2.576,599,924,731  1,849,307.819,163

controlled entities

Other long-term investments 253 11 3193 652 506957 395,522 409,602
Provision for long-term financial 254 11 (24,110,200,070) (24,333.078.200)
Held-to-maturity investments 255 1 2,800,100.000 -
Oither non-current nisets 260 455,578,574,923 402, 349,6T0,495
Long-term prepaid expenses 261 16 427 394,657,163 373,585,689,251
Deferred income tax assels 262 28 183917 760 28,763 981 244
TOTAL ASSETS 27 33,244,717,607,580  30,424,970,632,989

The accompanying notes are an iniegral part of these consolidated financial siatements 11
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Mo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form No. B 01a - DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025

1o 30 June 2025
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'IN)
Az o 30 Jume 2025
RESDURCES Code Motes J0Ms 2025 OL0L202S
YD VN
LIABILITIES 20 1529625291780 13008273019, 744
Current linbilities 210 &, 736,608, 740,373 B090. 991 348,524
Shor-lerm teade payables I I8 | 683.733,880,700 | 608 020,979,726
& hori=term sdvamees from customers 32 T0.590,190,895 77,566,769, 514
Taxes and other pavables to the 313 19 406,084,339, 648 309,516,290,210
State budget
Payables to emplovees 114 468,165,626,815 684,217 666,497
Shorl-term accrued expenses 5 20 2600450081122 2,313,842 060,507
& hor-tenn unearned revenue 318 21 163,860, 149 666 25249 417 363
Short-term other payables e 22 1, 387239432, 740 I,542,820618819
Short-term loan and finance lease obligations 3200 24 1,478 308,224,083 1,2B0,673,986,345
Short-term peovision 32 2,600,000,000 25, 100,000, 000
Bonus and welfare funds 322 274575, 814,604 142.554,559,543
Mon-carrent linhilities 330 6,559 644,177,523 418281671222
Long-term acerued expenses 333 20 13,882,563,322 13,882, 563,322
Long-term uncarned revenus 336 21 05,358,338,109 A4, 734,413,104
Orther long-term labilities £ [ Y 2,372,742 490 883 2381238407 840
Long-term loan and finence leaze obligations 338 24 3,632 044,561,138 1,999 549 682,841
[Dreferred tax liabilities 341 13 444 /16,204,071 468,876,542, 109
OWNERS' EQUITY ET] 17,948 d6d 689,684 17416,697,613,243
Capital 410 25 17,94%,464,689,684  17,416,697,613,243
Coentributed charter capital 411 12,005 880,000,000  12,005,380,000,000
= Shares with varing rights ERErs P 2,005 880,000,000 12,003,880,000 000
Share premium 412 T45,028.557 745,029, 557
Other owners' capital 414 73,760,124,209 73,241,144,535
Asset revalustion reserve 416 (3,203,637,830,471)  (3,203,637,830,471)
Foreign excharnge differences reserve 417 Qa, A20.6 14 450 108,490,338,222
Investment and development funds 418 3,404 072470913 2,033,165,304,314
Orther funds belonging to owners' equity 420 92,327,503 92,227,503
Retained samings 421 725 958,580, 687 506, 828,553,066
- Undistritaied earnings aooumulmed fo the  42ia (48 78 120,414y ¢l 424,185,891, T32)
previous pear end
- Lindistribated earnings of the current d421h Frd 536 716 100 2A2F 084 444 218
period
Mon-controlling interest 4249 4,756,264.463, 746  4.901,883,756517
TOTAL LIARTLITIES AND 440 33.244,717,607,580  30,424,970,632,980
Hanol, 29 August 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and General Director
Accounting Department
Vu Thi Thanh Duyen Le Duy Duong %‘_ﬁ_:_d_j‘ Anh Son

The accompanying notes are an integral port of these consolidated fincaneial statemenis 12
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YIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form No. B 02a - DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025

i

Mo.]1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietham to 30 June 2025
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the period from 0F January 2025 to 30 June 2025
liems Code MNotbes From 010172025 From 01/01/2024
to 3070672025 to 30V06/2024
VMDD YD
Revenue from sabe of goods and 1] zT 8375392, 827,621 8.269477,258,719
rendering of services
Dheductions 0z 4, 828,329,195 3,058,548 367
Net revenue from sale of goods and 1 B.370,564 498426  B2o6d18,710362
rendering of services
Cost of goods sold I 28 7000065617636  6,853.974.532,268
Gross profit from sale of goods and 20 1370498, 880,700 1,412, 444,178,094
readering of services
Financial income 21 29 276.391,228,401 337.721,374,400
Financial expenses 22 30 208, 186,196,600 [ 50,593,420,270
In which: interest expenses 23 116,796,703, 346 RO 584,450,723
Shares of profit of asocistes, 14 197 988 864,744 69,085,720,624
Selling expenses 25 3l 69,120,210,484 65,459, 706,170
General and administrative expenses 26 32 611,037,057.787 553,278.177,852
Owperating profit an 056,535,508,998  1,049.919,968916
Other income 31 33 300,391,427,818 £69 828,092,893
(rher expenses 32 34 27.101,977.642 34.065,153,793
Other profit/(loss) 40 373,280.450,176  835,762,939,100
Aceounting profit before tax S0 1. 229824950174 1,885,682 208,016
Current corporate income 12X expense 1! 238,007,440, 888 274 884 847,606
Deferred tax expense/{income) 52 (24,708,937 93E) (4,783,125,869)
Net profit after tax &0 1,016,526,456.224  1,615,581,186,279
Met profit after tax attributable to 61 774,536,716,101  1,196,206,220,724
sharehalders of the parent
Met profit after tax attributable to non- 62 241,989.740.123 419374,965,555
controlling interests
Rasic eaming per sham 70 35 645 006
Hmar', 29 Awguss 2025
rer Head of Finance and, Director
Accounting Depa ik TﬂHG ciNG ™ -

HANG |"P.| "r.-

- |I
W '-HET NAM, 2]
CTCP &/

Vu Thi Thanh Duyen Le Duy Duong \. 7 P W n,.e Anh Son

The accompanying aoles are an infegral part of these meﬂuimwdﬂmucmf .::m'.l'em-enn 13



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form No. B 03a— DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2023

MNo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam for 30 June 2025
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(B Inclirect method)
Far the period from 0 January 2023 to 30 Jure 20253
Ttems Code Notes From 01/01/2025 From 01012024
o A0M06 2EE to 3006224
VMDD VND
Cash flows from operating aclivities
Profit before tax o1 1.229,824,959.174 1,B85,6582,908,016
Adjustments for
Diepreciation and amoartization 0z I, 139,548,356 778,661,959,296
Provisions 03 (13,530,068, 728) (6,974,426,804)
Foreign exchange {gains Mlosses arisen from 04 (33,731,570,211) (27.864,876,913)
revaluation of monetary accounts
denominated in foreign curmency
{Profits)/losses from investing activities 05 (575.227.065,287) (646,318,537,079)
Interest expenses 06 116, 796,703,546 80,584,459,723
Other adjustments 07 - 2,691,731
Operating profit before changes in working o 1,435,263, 506,850 2072 774 TT AT
capifal
Increase’decrense in receiviblas 09 {483,772 360,531) (601,630,253,433)
Increase/decrease in inveniones 10 (12,167,664, 707) (L0033,165,T18)

Increase/decreases in pavables (not including
accrued interest and corporate ineome [ax

payable}

{Increase)decrease in prepaid expenses 12

[nterest paid 14

Caorporate incoime tax paid 15

Other cash reczipts from operating activities 16

Other cash payments for operating activities 17
Net cash flows from operating activities 20
Cash Mows form investment activities

Purchase and construction of fixed assets |

and other long-term assets

Procesds from disposals of fixed assets and 22
other long-terrm asses

Loans to other entities and payment for 23
purchase of deht instruments of other entities
Collections from bomowers and procesds 24
from =ale of debt instruments of cther entities
Payments for investietits in other entities 25

Proceeds from sales of investments in other 26

entities

Interest and dividends received 17
Neit cash flows from fmvesting aciivirles 30

340,867,203,129

CLI02RD, 302 743
(61,672,471,978)
{190,954,695,857)
2,174,119.322
{179,742,378,200)
734, 705,865,286

(2,438,933,080,178)
401,797,698,029
(3,164,752,954,550)
3,280,112 868,263

(39,397,009,805)
7,500,710,000

228835503033
(1,724,745,774,308)

619,053,961,354

19,973, 487,239
{119,782,053,779)
(280,700,075,102)

30419681
(120228 571 838)
1,570,457,926.354

(900,394, 193.915)
£39,039,014,896
{3.218,717,452,208)
3,576,146,164,493

(100,000,000)
67,591,687,592

213,777,179,692
187,342,400, 550

The decompanying rotes are an imtegral part of these consolidated financial statemenls 14
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Form No. B (Ga- IMN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo, | Dao Duy .ﬁ.nhLKEm Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam 1 30 June 2025
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONT'D)
(By indirect method)
Far the period fram 01 Jarsary 2025 to 30 June 2025
Items Code Notes From 01/01/2015 From 01/01/2024
to JVDGI0S o Sk 2024
VMDD YD
Cash Mows from Minancing activitics
Proceeds from issuance of shares and capital 3l SO0, (el (R0 -
contributions from awners
Drawdown of bormowings 33 2.652470.911,997 04,523,357,032
Repayments of borrowings 14 {281,217,.B62,856) (109 256,033 355)
Dividends, profits paid to owners 36 {140,946,510,810) (60,790,946,909)
Net cash flows from flnancing activities 40 1,630,806,538,331 (75,532,623,232)
Met incrense/decrease in cash and cash S0 645,766,629, 304 1,682,267,703,672
equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 60 4 325501 2,146,283 2,771.448.217.598
of the period
Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 6l 16,171,187,938 52,483,182,658
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of TH 4 3.916,949,963,530 4,506,199,103,928
period
Hanoi, 29 August 2023
Preparer Head of Finance and General Director
Accounting Dl:purtm:n‘t//;__ﬁ '-""E'ﬁ}“u\
L i Sl
f'rﬂx TNG CONGTY 2 A
||_= HANG H
I'JIIET T"I '-i-.ll-ll
s
_-"
Vu Thi Thanh Duyen Le Duy Duong w‘w % pro € Anh Son

The aecompanying rotes are an integral part af these consolidared financiol statements 15
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VIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — Form No. B 09a — DN/HN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the period from 01 January 2023
Mool Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hﬂml, Yietnaim to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(These rotes ore an inlggral pareaf and shawkd be reed i confarction witk the secompanying fnancial EIRT A T

1.
1.1

1.2

.3

14

GENERAL INFORMATION
STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP

Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company was established under Decision No.
250/TTg dated 29 March 1993, issued by the Prime Minister. On 29 September 2006, the
Corporation was converted to operate under a Pareat Company - Subsidiary Company model,
in accordance with Decision No. 216/2006/0D-TTg issued by the Prime Minister. At the same
time, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 217/2006/QD-TTg on the establishment of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation.

(n 25 June 2010, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 985/QD-TTg approving the
transformation of Vietnam Maritime Corporation into a one-member limited liability
company owned by the State.

As part of the restructuring project of Victnam Maritime Corporation, approved by the Prime
Minister, the Corporation carried out financial settlement and enterprise valuation for
equitization as of 31 December 2016. On 08 Decernber 2017, the Minister of Transport issued
Decision Mo, 3402/QD-BGTVT, anncuncing the enterprise value for the equitization of
Victnam Maritime Corporation — Parent Company. On 20 June 2018, the Prime Minister
issued Decision No. 751/QD-TTg, approving the equitization plan for the Corporation. On 18
June 2020, the State Capital Management Committee at Enterprises issued a Decision No.
277/QF-UBQLY, adjusting the charter capital scale and structure based on the results of the
initial public offering of Vietnam Maritime Corporation. The Corporation successfully held
the first General Meeting of Shareholders on 13 August 2020 and officially transitioned into
a Joint Stock Company on 18 August 2020,

The Corporation operates under Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0100104393 issued
by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 07 July 2010. From 1§ August 2020,
the Corporation amended its Tth Enterprise Registration Certificate to officially convert into
a joint stock company with charter capital of VNI 12,005,880,000,000. The %th amendment
was made on 10 Tuly 2025

The Corporation’s headquarters is located at Ocean Park Building, No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim
Lien Ward, Hanoi City.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSE FIELD

The Corporation's main business activities include coastal and ocean freight transportation,
inland waterway and road transporiation, and supporting services related to transportation;
port and inland waterway terminal operations; agency services, freight forwarding, logistics,
warchousing, and storage of goods, as well as debt trading.

NORMAL FRODUCTION AND BUSINESS CYCLES

The Corporation’s normal business cycle is within 12 months.

STATEMENT OF COMPARABILITY IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The comparative figures presented in the interim consolidated financial statements for the
period from 01 Janvary 2025 to 30 June 2025 are based on the audited financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 and the reviewed financial statements for the
period from 01 January 2024 to 30 June 2024, and are fully comparable.

16



VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION -
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No.! Dap Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Yictnam

Form No. B (9 — DN/HN
For the period from 01 Januvary 2025
o 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT IV
{These rotes are an integral part of ead shawld be read i conjrrction wirk e accompanyirg ekl stmementr)
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GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT'D)

CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE

The Corporation has subsidiaries whose financial staterments are consolidated as of 30 June
2025, including:

Name of subsidiaries Place of Rate of Rateof Principal activities
establishment  interest voting
and operation rights

Vietnam Ocean Ho Chi Minh 51.05%  51.05% Maritime sarvice

Shipping Agence

Corporation

Yiemam Ocean Hai Phong City £1.00%  51.00% Sea transport service

Shipping JAC

VIMC Logistics J3C Haneoi City £0.50%  60.59% Maritime service

Cam Ranh Port JSC Khanh Hoa B0.00%  B0.90% Seaport and terminal
handling service

Vinaship J5C Hai Phong City 51.00%  51.00% Sea transport service

Port of Hai Phong JSC Hai Phong City §2.56%  92.56% Seaport and terminal
handling service

Mghe Tinh Port JSC Nghe An £1.00%  51.00% Seaport and terminal
handling service

Saigon Port JSC He Chi Minh 65,458,  6543% Seaport and terminal
handling service

Era Mang Port J5C Da Mang City T5.00% 0 75.00% Seaport service

Vietnamn Container Hai Phong City ~ 60.00%  60.00% Sea transport service

Crperation Co.,Lad

Vietnam Hi-Tech Hanoi City 56.00%  56.00% Seaport and terminal

Transportation Co..Lid handling sarvice

Bien Dong Shipping Hanoi City 100.00% 100.00% Sea transport service

Co.Lud

Cal Lan Port Investment Cuang Ninh 56.58%  56.58% Seaport and terminal

I5C handling service

Hau Glang Maritime Hau Giang 100.00%  100.00% Seaport and terminal

Service One Member handling service

Co..Lud

Can Tho Port J3C Can Tho City 99.01%  99.01% Seaport and terminal
handling service

Vinalines Nha Trang JSC ~ Khanh Hoa 01.79%  91.79% Sea transport service

Cluy Whon Port 15C (i) Binh Dinh 75.01%  75.01% Seaport and terminal
handling service

Cam Ranh Port Maritime  Khanh Hoa 41.26%  S51L.00% Maritime service

Service JSC

Dinh Vi Port Investment  Hal Phong City 4721%  51.00% Seaport and terminal

and Development 1SC handling service

Hai Phong Port Tugboat Hai Phong City 55.54%  60.00% Martime service

and Transport J3C

Hoang Dieu Port One Hai Phong City 92.56% 100.00% Scaport and terminal

Member Co..Ltd handling service

Hai Phong Port Medical Hai Phong City 02 56%  100.00%% Dijch v kham chim

Center One Member bénh

Cou.Lid

Haiphong Port Operations ~ Hai Phong City 02 56% 100.00% Health care service

And Engincering Training

One Member Co..Ltd

Sai Gon Logistics JSC Ho Chi Minh 48.52%  74.13% Maritime service

17



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - Form No. B (8a — DN/HN
JOINT 5TOCK COMPANY For the period from 01 January 2025
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These nedes ave @ fuegeal part af ond showld Be read e confurction wilh the sccompanydng fnancied sanememns)

Mo,

25

27
28

31

32
i3

14

X5

Mame of subsidiaries Place of Rateof Rateof  Principal activities
establishment  interest  voting
and operation rights
%ai Gon Hiep Phuoc Port  Ho Chi Minh $9.26%  90.54% Seaport and ferminal
18C handling service
Sai (Gon Port Technical Ho Chi Minh 41.44%  6331% Maritime service
Service Commercial JSC
Sai Gon Port Maritime Ho Chi Minh 33.38%  51.00%  Maritime service
Service and Transport J5C
Sai Gon Port Stevedoring Ho Chi Minh 34.51%  52.72% Maritime service
and Service JSC

VOSCO Manpower Supply  Hai Phong City S1.00%  51.00% Supply manpower
Omne Member Co..Lid

Hau Giang Port Service Hau Glang S1.00%  51.00% Maritime service
J5C

Vinaship Mantime Service  Hai Phong City SLO0% 51003  Maritime service
Co..Ltd

Quy Nhon Port Logistics  Quy Nhon T5.01%  75.01% Maritime service

Services Co,. Lud

VIMC Container Hanol 20.56%  99.56% Seaport and terminal

Transport JSC (WVIMC handling service

Lines) (ii)

Wietnam maritime Hai Phong City 51.00%  530.55% Martime service

development joint stock

com

WVIMC Dinh Vu Port 1SC Hai Phong Eit:.-' 51009  30.55%  Seaport and terminal
handling service

(i) In September 2013, the Corporation divested its capital in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company
(MNP} under a share transfer contract with Hop Thanh Investment and Mineral Joint Stock Company
(Hop Thanh). On 27 May 2019, following the Govemment Inspectorate’s conclusion on the
equitization of QNP, the directive of the Permanent Deputy Prime Minister, and guidance from
competent authorities, the Corporation signed contract No, 01201 9WNL-HT/ACGEP with Hop Thanh
regarding the transfer of ownership of QNP shares. On 29 May 2019, the transfer of ownership of
30,312,262 shares, equivalent to 75.01% of QNP's charter capital, to the Corporation was executed
through the Vietnam Securities Depository.

According to the comtract, the total transfer value includes (1) the transfer amount and () the
investor's legitimate interests, as follows:

The transfer amount { 1) was VND 415,156,027,500. This amount was paid by the Corporation
to Hop Thanh on 27 May 2019 and was temporarily recorded as an investment in QNP on the
date of ownership transfer.

The investor's legitimate interests (2) represent the legal benefits that Hop Thanh is entitled
to during its investment, management, and operational period, The two parties agreed that
Hop Thanh would provide the basis and methodology for determining these benefits, which
the Corparation wonld review and submit to the competent authorities for approval.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - Form No. B (9a - DN/HMN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the period from 01 January 2023
Mo.| Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Eﬂ'ﬁT’D}
(These noves ave go Imiegral part of amd showld e read in comjunciion with i eccompraping fnaneiel siafements)

1.
1.3

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTD}
CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE (CONT'D)

As at 30 June 2025, the parties have not vet determined the value (2) of the legal benefits that
Hop Thanh is entitled during the invesiment, management and operation period. Therefore,
the Corporation has not yet paid this amount to Hop Thanh and the investment value has not
been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS FOR PREFPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL YEAR

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2023
ofthe Corporation have been prepared based on the consolidation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Corperation and the financial statements of its subsidiaries under the
Corporation’s control (the Subsidiaries), which have been prepared for the 6-month period
ended 30 June 2025. Control is achieved when the Corporation has the ability to govern the
financial and operational policies of the investez companies to obtain benefits from their
activities,

The financial statements of the subsidiaries apply accounting policies conzistent with those of
the Corporation. Where necessary, the financial statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted 1o
ensure consistency in the accounting policies applied by the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

The financial statements of some subsidiaries and associates, including Bien Dong Shipping
One Member Limited Liability Company, Cai Lan Port Investment Joint Stock Company,
Hau Giang Maritime Services One Member Limited Liability Company, Vinalines Nha Trang
Joint Stock Company, and Cai Mep International Port Limited Liability Company, contain
events indicating the presence of significant uncertainty, leading to substantial doubt about
their ability to continse as a going concern. These concerns arise from factors such as
significant accumulated losses and shori-term liabilities exceeding shori-term assets.
However, the financial statements of these companies have been prepared under the going
concern assumption for the purpose of consolidation inte the Corporation’s consolidated
financial statements. The Corporation’s Board of General Directors believes that, given the
ongoing aggressive restructuring of loan debts and the highly positive developments in the
maritime transportation market, the assumption of going concern for the preparation of these
companies' financial statements is appropriate.

Major balances, income, and expenses, including unrealized gains or losses arising from intra-
group transactions, have been eliminated in the consolidation process.

Non-controlling interests represent the pertion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries
that are not held by the Corporation. These are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement and within the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet.
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YIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - Form No. B (%a - DN/HN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the period from 01 January 2025
No.] Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanol, Vietnam to 30 June 2025

NOTESTO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ETATEME‘*TI‘E (CONT'IN)
(These mofes are an iregral part af o showld be reed i confaaciion wint the aecompanying fnamolal siotemment)

2.

.2

1.3

A1

31

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL YEAR (CONT D)

APPLICABLE STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING POLICES

The Corperation applies Corporate Accounting System issued under the Circular No.
2002014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance, which was amended
and supplemented by Circular No. 532016/ TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by the Ministry of
Finance and follows Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC, which provides guidelines for the
preparation and presentation of the interim consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation has applied the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the relevant guidance
documents issued by the Government. The financial statements have been preépared and
presented in full compliance with the requirements of each standard, the implementing
circulars, and the prevailing corporate accounting system currently in effect.

FINANCIAL YEAR

The financial year of the Corpaoration begins on 01 January and ends on 31 December of the
calander year. These interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the
period from 01 Januwary 20235 to 30 June 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Corporation in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the interim consolideted financial statements in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the financial year, Actual operating results may differ from these
estimates and assumptions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are converted into Vietnamese Dong (VND) at the actual
exchange rate applicable on the transaction date.

The actual transaction exchange rate used for revaluating monetary items denominated
foreign currencies at the date of preparation of the consolidated financial statements is
determined as follows:

- For items classified as assets, the buying exchange rate of the commercial bank with
which the Corporation regularly conduets transactions is applied;

- For foreipn currency deposits, the buying exchange ratc of the bank where the
Corporation maintains its foreign currency account is applied;

- For items classified as lisbilities, the selling exchange rate of the commercial bank with
which the Corporation regularly conducts transactions is applied.

Exchange rate differences ariging from the revaluation of year-end balances, after offsetting
increases and decreases, are recognized as financial income or financial expenses in the
financial year,
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - Form No. B (9a - DN/HN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the period from 01 January 2025

No.1 Dac Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These notes ave an ilegral part of ad showd br read b corgirction with dhe accompaaying fimeacim stelememy

3.
3.3

34

3.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits at banks.

Cash equivalents are shori-term investments with a maturity period not exceeding three
months from the date of scquisition, which are highly liquid, readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of a business
combination includes the fair value at the exchange date of the exchanged assets, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the acquirer in exchange for control
over the acquirce, along with direct costs related to the business combination. ldentifiable
assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities of the acquiree in a business combination are
recognized at fair value as of the business combination date,

Gioodwill or gain from a bargain purchase is determined as the difference berween the cost of
the investment and the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary as of the
acquisition date when the parent company gains control over the subsidiary. Any gain from a
bargain purchase (if applicable) is recognized in the consolidated income statement. Goodwill
is amaortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years, Periodically, the
Company assesses goodwill impairment in its subsidiaries. If there is evidence that goodwill
impairment exceeds the annual allocation, the impairment amount is recognized immediately
in The vear it occurs,

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Trading securities are initially recognized at cost, including the purchase prices plus any
directly attributable transaction costs (if any), such as brokerage fees, transaction fees,
information service fees, taxes, levies, and bank fees. After initial recognition, trading
securities are measured at cost minus any allowance for impairment. Upon disposal or sale,
the cost of trading securities is determined using the first-in, first-out method or the weighted
average method.

Held-to-maturity investments comprise term deposits held to maturity to earn profits
periodically and other held-to-maturity investments. These mvestments are initially recorded
at cost, including purchase price and related transaction costs. After initial recognition, these
investments are recorded at their recoverable amount. Interest income from held-to-manrity
investments after the purchase date is recorded on the income statement on an acerual basis.
Interest eamed before the acquisition date is deducted from the initial cost at the time of
purchase.

Investments in subsidiaries, foint ventures, and associmies acquired during the year are
recognized by the acquiring entity based on the acquisition date, acquisition cost, and
accounting procedures in compliance with the accounting standards on "Business
Combinations" and "Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates.”

In the interim consolidated financial statements, investments in joint ventures and associales
are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investments arc
initially recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and subsequently adjusted for
changes in the Corporation’s share of the net assets of the associate after the acquisition date.
Goodwill arising from investments in associates is included in the carrying amount of the
investment. The Corporation does not amortize goodwill but assesses its impairment annually
io determine whether a write-down 15 necessary,
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIN

3.3 FINANCIAL INVESTMENT (CONT'DY)

For adjustments to the value of investments in joint ventures and associates arising during the
petiod, the Corporation excludes the portion of preferred dividends atiributable to other
shareholders (if preferred shares are classified as equity); the estimated allocation for reward
and welfare funds of jeint ventures and associates; and the profits related to transactions where
the joint venture or associztc contributes capital or sells assets to the Corporation before
determining the Corporation’s ownership share in the profit or loss of the joint venture or
associate for the reporting period. The Corporation then adjusts the value of the investment
cormesponding to its ownership share in the profit or loss of the joint venture or associate and
recognizes it immediately in the consolidated income statement.

The financial statements of associates are prepared in the same period as the Corporation's
consolidated financial statements and follow aecounting policies consistent with those of the
Corporation, Appropriate adjustments are recorded to ensure the accounting policies applied
are consistent with those of the Corporation when necessary.

Egquity investments in other entities comprise investments in equity instruments of other
entities without having control, joint control, or significant influence over the investee. These
investments are initially stated at cost. After initial recognition, these investments are
measured at cost minus any provision for impairment of investments.

Provision Tor impairment of investments is made at the end of the financial yvear as follows:

- For trading sccuritics investmenis: The provision is based on the difference between the
original cost of the investments recorded in the accounting books and their market value
at the time of provision,

- For long-term investments (not classified as trading securities) and where there is no
significant influence over the investee: If the investment is in listed stocks or its fair value
can be reliably determined, the provision is based on the market value of the stock. If the
fair value of the investment cannot be determined at the reporting date, the provision 15
based on the financial statements of the investee at the time the provision 15 made.

- For held-to-maturity investments: If there is clear evidence that part or all of the
investment may nol be recoverable, and the loss can be reliably determined, the loss is
recognized as a financial expense for the year and directly deducted from the investment
value,

A6 RECEIVABLES

Receivables are presented at their carrying amount minus provisions for doubtful debts and
are tracked in detail according to original maturity, remaining term at the reporting date,
debtor, currency type, and other factors based on the Corporation’s management needs.

Provisions for doubtful receivables are made for each doubtful receivable based on the
estimated potential loss. Specifically, provisions are allocated for receivables that are past due
gs stated in economic conlracts, coatragt commitments, or debt agreements, where the
company has made multiple collection attempts but has not yet recovered the debi. The
determination of the overdue period for receivables is based on the original payment deadline
in the initial sales contract, without considering any debt extensions between parfies.
Provisions are also made for receivables that have not yet reached their due date but where
the debtor has gone bankrupt, is undergoing dissolution procedures, has gone missing, or has
fled. The provisions are reversed when the debt i3 recovered.

Lijn W

L

L T

ik T a B



VIETMAM MARITIME CORPORATION — Form No. B 09a — DN/HN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the period from 01 January 2025
Mol Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanol, Yietnam tor 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(Thaese notes dre ga (mtegral port of mad shoud be remd in congrction with the accompanirg faamcial siatemd

o
L7

LE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT DY)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of inventories
includes purchase costs, processing costs, and other directly related expenses incurred to bring
the inventories to their current location and condition. The net realizable value is determined
as the estimated selling price minus the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to sell them.

The value of inventories is determined using the weighted average method. Inventories are
accounted for using the perpetual inventory system. However, at VIMC Shipping Company,
a dependent unit of the parent company, inventory wvalue {primarily fiuel on ships) is accounted
for using the periodic inventory system.

Method for determining the value of work-in-progress at the end of the period: of work-in-
progress is accumulated based on actual costs incurred for each service or project consulting
itemn that has not yet been completed. Long-term work-in-progress is accumulated based on
the actual costs incurred for real estate investment projects held for sale.

Provisions for inventory devaluation are made at the end of the accounting period for each
inventory item where the cost exceeds the net realizable value. Increases or decreases in the
provision balance required at the financial year-end are recorded in the cost of goods sold.

TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets (tangible and intangible) are initially recorded at historical cost. During their
useful life, tangible and intangible fixed assets are stated at cost, accumulated depreciation
(accumulated amortization), and carrving amount.

Finance lease fixed assets are inifially recognized at cost, which is determined as the fair value
or the present value of the minimum lease payments (whichever is lower), plus any directly
attributable initial costs incurred in connection with the finance lease arrangement (excluding
value-added tax). During the usage period, finance lease fixed assets are presented al cost,
sccumulated depreciation, and carrying amount. The depreciation policy for finance lease
fixed assets is consistent with the depreciation policy applied to similar owned assets of the
Corporation and 18 charged to production and business expenses, ensuring full capital
Im‘\'ﬂl}".

Depreciation of fixed assets is applied on a straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as [ollows:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'TY
TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (CONT'IY)

Categories of fixed asseis Useful lives (year)
Buildings, structures 0 =35
Machinery, equipment 05— 10
Wehicles and transmission equipment 06 —20
Office equipment and furniture 03 —10
Fixed-term land use righis 50
Indefinite-term land use rights No amortization
Computer soflware 03
Orther intangible assets 02=21

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are recorded at historical cost. For investment properties that were put
into use and recorded at cost before the determination of equitization value, the historical cost
and accumulated depreciation are recognized based on the valuation results of the equitized
parent company — Corporation, as approved and announced by the competent authority.

For investment properties leased under operating leases, they are recorded at historical cost,
accumulated depreciation, and carrying amount. Depreciation is applied using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Categories of fixed assets Useful lives (year)
Buildings, structures 20-25
Land use rights 50
Infrastructure 47

The conversion of owner-occupied property or inventory into investment property occurs only
when there is a change in use, such as when the owner ceases to use the asset and begins
leasing it to another party under an operating lease or upon the completion of the construction
phase. Similarly, the conversion of investment property into owner-occupied property of
inventory takes place only when there is a change in use, such as when the owner starts using
the asset for its own operations or begins preparing it for sale. The conversion of investment
property into owner-occupied property or inventory does not alter the historical cost or
carrving amount of the property at the date of transfer,

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress costs include assets such as equipment that is in the process of being
procured and installed but has not yet been put into use, as well as basic construction projects
that are still under construction and have not been completed or put into use at the time of
closing the books for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These assets
are recorded at historical cost, The historical cost includes Payments for goods and services
to contractors and suppliers, Related borrowing costs incurred during the investment phase,
and Other reasonable expenses directly associated with the formation of the asset
Depreciation for these assets is applied in the same manner as for other assets and begins
when the asset is available for use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

111  OPERATING LEASE

Operating leases refer to fixed asset leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership remains with the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are
recognized in the income statement on & straight-line basis over the lease term.

311 PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses related to the business operations of multiple financial years are recorded
as prepaid expenses and gradually allocated to the business results over subsequent financial
years. The value of goodwill and re-evaluated tools and instruments is recognized based on
the enterprise valuation results of the equitized parent company — Corporation, as approved
and announced by the competent authority.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses into production and business
costs for each financial year are based on the nature and extent of each type of expense,
selecting an appropriate allocation method and criteria.

The Corporation's prepaid expenses include:

- Prepaid land expenses: These include prepaid land lease payments, including land-related
expenses for which the Corporation has obtained a land use right certificate but does not
meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible fixed asset. These costs are recognized
in the income statement using the straight-line method over the term of the land lease
contract,

- Tools and instruments: Tools and instruments that have been put into use are allocated to
expenses based on an assessment of the actual situation, with their costs reflected in the
income statemment for the vear.

- Fixed asset repair costs: One-time repair costs for fixed assets with a significant value are
allocated to cxpenses based on an assessment of the actual situation, with the costs
reflected in the income statement for the year.

- Rental and insurance expenses: These are allocated based on the prepaid period.

313 PAYABLES

Payables are tracked based on payment terms, creditors, foreign currency type, and other
factors according to the Corporation’s management requirements. Payables are classified as
either short-term or long-term in the consolidated financial statements based on their
remaining maturity as of the reporting date,

314 LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Loans and finance lease obligations include vamous tvpes of loans and finance |case
obligations.

These loans and finance lease obligations are tracked in detail, based on each loan entity, each
loan debtor, each loan contract and each type of loan asset, the repayment term, and the
original currency (if any). Loans with the remaining repayment term of more than 12 months
from the reporting date are presented as long-term loans and financial lease obligations. Loans
due within the next 12 months from the reporting date are classified as short-term loans and
finance lease obligations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognized as production and business expenses in the period in which
they are incurred, except for borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the investment,
construction, or production of qualifying assets that require a substantial period of time (over
12 months) to be ready for their intended use or sale. These costs are capitalized as part of the
assel's value when the conditions set out in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 16 -
Borrowing Costs are mel.

For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025, all loan interest expenses are recorded
in the income statement,

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates of the amount payable for
goods and services used during the period when no invoices are available or when accounting
records and documents are insufficient, including loan interest expenses and other related
costs.

The recording of acerued expenses as production and business expenses during the year shall
be carried out under the matching principle between revenues and expenses during the year,
Accrued expenses are settied with actual expenses incurred. The difference between accrued
and actual expenses is reversed.

PROVISION FOR PAYABLES
Provisions for pavables are recognized only when the following conditions are met:

- The Corporation has a present ohligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event;

- There is a probable outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation;

- A reliable estimate of the obligation amount can be made.

The recognized value of a provision is the most reasonable estimate of the amount required
to settle the present obligation as of the financial year-end date.

Only expenses directly related to the initially recognized provision can be offset against that
provison.

Provisions for payables are recorded as operating expenses in the financial year, If the
provision recognized in a prior financial year exceeds the required provision in the current
reporting period, the excess amount is reversed and recognized as a reduction in operaling
expenses for the year.

UNEARNED REVENUES

Unearned revenue includes revenue received in advance such as: amounts prepaid by
customers for one or more accounting periods relating to asset leasing; unrealized gains
arising from the contribution of non-monetary assets as capital to joint ventures or associates,
corresponding to the Corporation's ownership interest in such joint ventures or associates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'IY
OWNER'S EQUITY

Orwner's equity at the end of the period is recognized based on the actual contributed capital
of the owner, which is the charter capital of the Corporation approved by the State Capital
Management Committee at Enterprise under Decision No. 277/0D-UBQLY on 18 June 2020,

At Bien Dong One Member Limited Liability Shipping Company ("Bien Dong™):
According to the guidelines of the Ministry of Finance in Official Letter No. 75 1/BTC-TCDN
dated 17 September 2015, the difference between the amount of debt Bien Dong assumed
from the Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC) and the principal and interest
payable 1o credit institutions (incurred before the creditor conversion) is recorded as an
increase in the value of state capital at Bien Dong. This guidance differs from the Vietnamese
Accounting Standards {VAS), which require such differences to be recorded in the income
statement for the year,

Hefore 2017, Bien Dong applied the guidance from Official Letter No. 751/BTC-TCDN dated
17 September 2015, from the Ministry of Finance ("Official Letter 751") regarding the
accounting treatment of the difference between the book value of liabilities and the assumed
debt value with DATC. Accordingly, the difference between the amount of debt assumed by
the company from DATC and the principal and interest payable to credit institutions was
recognized as an increase in the value of state capital at Bien Dong,.

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong adopted the Vietmamese Accounting Standards (VAS), under
which the difference between the amount of debt assumed from DATC and the principal and

interest payable o credit institutions was recorded in the income statement for the
reporting year.

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applicd the guidance from Circular No, 46/2021/TT-BTC
dated 23 June 2021, Official Letter Mo, T3 1/BTC-TCDN dated 17 September 2013, Oificial
Letter No. 5883/ BTC-TCDN dated & May 2017, and Official Letter No, 1440BTC-TCDN
dated § February 2021 from the Ministry of Finance.

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards
(VAS) in recognizing these amounts, then on the consolidated balance shoot as of | January
2025, the Revaluation Surplus (Code 416) will decrease by VND 2,166.24 billion, while the
Undistributed After-Tax Profit (Code 421) will increase by the corresponding amount.
Similarly, as of 30 June 2025, the Revaluation Surplus (Code 416) will decrease by VND
2,166.24 billion, with 8 comesponding increase in the Undistributed After-Tax Profit (Code
421).

Share premium reflects the difference between the par value, direct costs related to share
issuance, and the actual issuance price of shares (including cases of reissuance of treasury
shares), The premium can be positive (if the issuance price is higher than the par value and
the dircct issuance costs) or negative (if the issuance price is lower than the par value and the
issuance costs).

Crther capital within owner's equity reflects business capital formed from business results,
donations, sponsorships, or asset revaluations (if permitted to increase or decrease the owner's
contributed capital).

Revaluation surplus is recognized in cases such as when there is a government decision 1o
revalue assets, during the equitization of state-owned enterprises, or in other coses as

prescribed by law, Undistributed after-tax profit reflects the business results (profit or loss)
after corporate income tax, as well as the profit distribution or loss treatment within the

Corporalion.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)
REVENUE RECOGNTTION

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the outcome of a transaction can be
measured reliably. For services rendered over multiple vears, service revenue is recognized
nzing the percentage of completion method as of the balance sheet date. The sale of services
15 recognized when all of the following conditions are met:

- Revenue can be measured reliably;

- It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Corporation;

-  The percentage of completion of services at the balance sheet date can be measured;

= Costs incurred in rendering the services and the estimated costs to complete the services
can he measured.

The completed portion of service rendering is determined using the completed work
evaluation methaod.

Financinl income

Income from interest, royaltics, dividends, profit distributions, and other financial income is
recopmized when the following two (2) conditions ére met;

= There is a probable inflow of economic benefits from the transaction.
- The income amount can be measured rehably.

Dividends and profit distnbutions are recognieed when the Corporation is entitled to receive
dividends or profit distributions from its investmenis.

Common shares or stock dividends: No imcome is recognized when the right to receive
common shares or stock dividends 1s established. The number of common shares or stock

dividends receved 15 disclosed in the relevant consolidated financial statements,
DEDUCTIONS

Revenue deductions from sales and service provisions arising in the year include trade
diseounts, sales discounts and sales retums.

Trade discounts, sales discounts and sales returns that occur within the same period as the sale
of products, goods, or services are recognized as a reduction in revenue in the period they
pccur. For cases where the products, goods, or services were sold in previous periods and
revenue deductions arise in a subsequent period, the recognition follows these principles: If
the deduction occurs before the issuance of the consolidated financial statements, 1t is
recorded as a reduction in revenue in the prior period’s consolidated financial statements {the
reporting period), if the deduction occurs after the issuance of the consolidated financial
staternents, it is recorded as a reduction in revenve in the current period's financial statements
[the subsequent period).
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

322 COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of goods sold in the period is recorded in accordance with the revenue generated in the
period and ensures compliance with the principle of prudence.

123 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include the following:

- Expenses or lnsses related to financial investment activities;

= Barrowing cosis;

- Losses from the disposal or transfer of short-term securities, and transaction costs for
selling securities;

- Provisions for impairment of trading securities, provisions for investment losses in other
entities, foreign exchange losses from currency sales, and foreign exchange rate losses,

These expenses are recorded at their gross amounts incurred during the year and are not offset

against financial income.

324 CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Current corparate income Tux (CIT) expense and deferred CIT expense

Current CIT expense is determined based on taxable income for the period and the applicable
corporate income tax rate for the current financial year,

Deferred CIT expense is determined based on deductible temporary differences, taxable
temporary differences, and the applicable corporate income tax rate.

Current CIT expense is not offset against deferred CIT expense.
Corporate income fax rate for the current financial year

For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025, the Corporation applies a CIT rate of
20% for taxable income derived from business and production activities.

32%  BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax atiributable o
commaon shareholders of the Corporation (after adjustments for allocations to the Welfare and
Reward Fund and the Executive Reward Fund) by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year.

3l6  RELATED PARTIES

A party is comsidered 1o be related to the Corporation if it has the ability to control the
Corporation or exercise significant influence over the Corporation in making financial and
operational decisions. Related parties include:

- Entities that, either directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, have control
over the Carporation, are controlled by the Corporation, or are under common control
with the Corporation, including the parent company, subsidiaries, and associates.

- Individuals who have the right to directly or indirectly vote in the reporting enterprises,
teading to significant influence over these enterprises, key management personnel who
have the authority and responsibility for planning, managing and controlling the
Corporation’s activities, including close family members of such individuals;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'DY)
RELATED PARTIES (CONT D))

- Enterprises owned by the aforementioned individuals, where they hold direct or indirect
voling rights or have significant influence over the enterprise,

When assessing each relationship of related parties, the nature of the relationship is
considered, not merely its legal form. All fransactions and balances with related parties
arising during the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025 are disclosed in the notes

below,

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinctly identifiable component of the Corporation that is involved in
providing related products or services (business segment) or providing products or services
within a specific economic environment {geographical segment). Each segment is exposed
to different risks &nd returns compared to other segments.

Segment information is prepared and presented in accordance with the sccounting policies
applied in the preparation and presentation of the Corporation's consolidated financial
statements. The purpose is to help users of the financial statements gain a clear understanding

and comprehensive assessment of the Corporation’s performance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

62023 01./01,/2024

YD YD

- Cash on hand 17.392.904,719 16,5601,419,383
- Demand deposits 1,890,318,776913  1,850,964,376,000
- Cash equivalents (*) 2,009,238,281 898 1387486350900

3,916,249.963,530  3,255,012,146,283

{*) Cash equivalents refier to commercial banks with maturities not exceading three maonths.
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Form No B 09a — DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

5. TRADE RECEIVABLES

0062025 am2nis
Balancc Frovision Balance Provizion
WD VND VD VMDD
Short-term 034, 598,049,371 (270.226,953.481) 1,744,569 889 525 (254,544,791,67K)
Relwied parties 03 K32 047 005 (43, 731,2103,235) QF, 777720, 152 (40 335, 710,062)
- Infermational Shipping and Labowr Cooperation J5C 265,402 B45 - Lo g3 011 -
« Viemium = Japan Inlernational Transport Co.,Lid 22,102,524 124,636,288
« Vietnam Honda Logistics Viemam Co., Lid TTL 760424 - [,137,853,872
- Bien Dong Logistics JSC 6,185,551, 380 - 4,655,791,380
- Vosco Agency and Logistics JSC 1,049,510,241 - 1,053,547, 594
= SITC-Dinh Vo Logistics Co.,Lid G607, 120,506 = -
- HPH Logistic J5C | 478,234,802 : 4,543,659,314 -
- Dong Do = Hai Phong Port Container Lines J5C 5,349 738,672 (5,349.738,672) £,269.170 882 (5,268,370 B82)
« 1 Lo Port Tughoat and Maritime Service JSC 85,741,166 - 0,680, 540 -
= BP.SEA [nternational Comginer Services Joint Venture 5,202 681,000 - 2 TR5.844 500 -
Company
- Cai Mep Infernationnl Terminal Co. Lid £, 350,045,209 (34,626,684 934) R R T [30,562,582,083)
= Koren Express Sai Gon Port Co, Lad Q09 633,544 - 4492 539914 -
- NYK Auto Logisties (Vietham) Co.,Ltd . - 355,175,057 <
« [ Wang Port Tughoat J5C G8.004, 500 . - -
- Viship JSC 1,754,779,629 (3,754,779,629) 3,754, 779,620 {3,754,779,620)
- Cai Lan Intermational Comainer Terminal Limited Liabiligy 2.761,870,333 - 2BX2.051,194 -
Compargy
- Dong Do Marine J5C [ 15,000 000 - 115,00, COEED =
- Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Company 315,200,000 - 248 00, DK -
- Mosoo-Vinalines Ship Repair 15C - - 307,030,500 .
- YWictmam Sea Transport and Chartering Joint Steck - 15, 142 Bl
Comparmy
- Mam Can Port Joint Stock Campany = - 47,000,000 -
- Viralines Dong Bac Joint Stock Company 448,968,468 {448,968, 468) 448,968,468 (448,968 468)
= VIMC — ARIES Maritime Services laint Yenture Company S0y, 552 = - -

Limited
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No B 09z - DN/HN

No. | Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam For the pericd from 01 Jamusary 2025 to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These notes are an integral part of mad thowld be read in conjumction wirk e accomsareying fimmncio! safemanss)

5.

TRADES RECEIVABLES (CONT'DY)
MDEI0ES 01,01 /2025
Balance Provision Balanes Provizion
VND VND VNI . VND
(Wher receivables P 065,202,276 (226,495,750, 246) IG653,002 160,678 (214,200,081 616}
Denmar Chartering & Trading GmbH 16,658 268, T2 (16,658 268,724} [ 6,658,208,724 {16,658 268 T24)
DIC Investment and Trading 15C 59,797,598 942 (59,797 S08.042) 60,597 598 942 (60,597, 598,.942)
Maersk Linez AS% 17,191, 187,00 - 10,561,674,714 -
Billion Industrial Vietnam Co., Ltd. 9.585 089,585 - 16,509,008 420 -
Ocean Metwork Express Pre Lid 13217 430,490 - 24 278,805,976
EITC Contamer Lings Co., Lid. 18.6458,248,792 - AR.657.005 546 .
Mam Tricu Shipping Co., Ltd 21,977,044 420 (20,977,044 4207 21,977,044 420 (21,977 044 4201
Maigai Nitto Logistics Vietnam Co., Lid. 14 983,269,574 - 14,116,722 448 -
Muti Phao Mining Co., Ltd 21,030,330,811 - 23010382470 -
PetroVietnam Power Corporation — Vietnam Mational Ol 141 805 672 4R0 z & =
Hoanh Sen Group Jeint Stock Company 185,499 228,310 . . -
Cither trade receivables |, 420,667 832,072 (128,062 B35, 1600 AL 814749016 (114,976,169 530)
Long-term 87,843,874,219 : 93,500,714 342 .
Recefvabiles from refated poriies T RA3.BT4.219 - 03,500 714,342 -
Cai Mep International Terminal Co..Ltd (*) 87,843.874,210 . 93,599,714,342 -

2.122,741 923,590 (270,226,953 481) __ 1.838,469,604,170 (254,544,791,678)

(*) Receivable from Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Ltd. (CMIT) related to infrastructure facility rental fees at Cai Mep Port. This includes a
receivable related to deferred land rental payments as per the contract agreement for the period from 2013 to 2019, This amount will be paid in 24
installments starting from 30 June 2019, until 31 December 2030. On 30 June 2023, Saigon Port and CMIT signed a temporary payment deferral
agreement with the lessors. Accordingly, the land rental payments deferred under the contract agreement for the period from 2013 to 2019, for the first
four installments, will be further deferred and will commence from 30 June 2025.

12
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Form No B 09a - DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

VIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC

Mao. | Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Viefnam
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'I))
(Thaese mores are aw Trnsegyel pors of ard showll be read by comfurctian with the aocomprrping feancned slafememis)

. ADVANCES TO SUFPLIERS

3 205 oi/o1/2025

Balance Proviskn Balance Provision
VN . VNI VMY VD
Short-term 787,331,053,858 (58,406,608,989) 004,476, 701,248 (60,552,920,726)
Related parties 5.517,224,480 > 2,676,105,764 .

- Corstruction Consultation JSC for Maritime Building 3.021,303,216 - 180, 154,300
- Deng Do Maring J5C 2495021 264 - 24854921 26 .
hher parties 781,813,829,378 (58,406,608, 989) 9001, 800,595,484 (600,552,920, 726)
- Bachdang Shipbuildimg Co,Lad {17 69 262,562 (i (49 230 258 319 G 262 562,000 (49.239,258,319)
- Wiz E & 5 Co., Lid - - | 08,086,362, 479 -

- Mam Trieu Shipbuilding Co.,Ltd (2) 256,655,705, 789 . 296,655,703, 789
« Phu ¥uan Consulting and Constrction Joint Stock 93,291,151 ,889 00 Bi0, 088 449 -

Comparmy

- Somg Thue Corporation 41,631 415,631 41,631,415631 =
- Unieo Vina Joint Stock Compary $1,940,000,000 : 50,940,000,000 .
- Hanoi Hydraulic Constriction Joint Stock Company 23 932,616,939 - 154493, 614 486 -
- {ihers 246, 10,377,121 9, 167,330,670) 259 B0 B40.641 (11,313,662407)
Long-term 24,653,308,581 - 24,653 398,551 -
- Rl Estate 10 15C 24,653 308 581 - 24,653,398,581 -
B11 UK 451430 (58,406,608.98Y) 929,130,099,529 (641,552,920,726)

(1) Includes:

- Advance payment related to Contract No. 01L/VNL-BE dated 22 November 2010, signed between the Parent Company — Corporation and Bach Dang
Shipbuilding Company for the construction of three vessels: BV-10, BV-11, and BV-12, amounting to VIND 49,239,258, 319. This advance payment
exceeds the finalized sentlement value due to the project termination,
The remaining amount is an advance payment for the construction of the Lucky Star and Blue Star vessels with Vietnam Sea Transport Joint Stock
Company. The parties are currently completing the necessary procedures to finalize the vessel settlement value.

(2) Advance payment to Nam Trieu Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company for the construction of the Vosce Sunrise vessel of Vietnam
Sea Transport Joint Stock Company. The two parties are in the process of completing the necessary procedures for the final settlement of the vessel's

value.

I 25, T ° s T ]
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC
Mo, | Dae Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These motes are an integred part of ead showld be reod s confwaction with i cecompanying finaneial siedements)

7.

Form No B 0%a - DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

LOAN RECETVABLES
11T Tl | R 01012025
Balance Provisiem Balance Provision
VND VND VND VND
Shori-term 221,465,000,(44) - 203,408, 000,000 -
Reliied pariics 22000, 0065 5 B, (R - 202, N0, D, (G0 -
- 8P-S54 |nternatioral Contalner Services Joint Venore - 220,065,000, 000 - 202 (08, 000,000
Company (i),
her partios T = | A I 000
- O¢hers 1,400, 000,000 = 1,400, CKN, 000 -
Loag-term ), 153,093,755 - 1,080, 764,677 466 .
Relwted parties A, 253 003, 755 - T ORD, 764 677 466 -
= 5P-554 Intcrmational Container Services Joind Venfure 245,599,000, 000 - 337, 100,850,000
Company (i)
. EP-PEA Intornational Port Co. Lid (i1) 436, 570,200,000 - 424,974, 330,000 -
- Cai Lan International Comntainer Terminal Co., Led. (3id) 228,083, 893 755 = J18,689 497 466 -
1,121, 718,093,755 - 1,284,172,677 466 -

i)

(1)

Loan under Resolution Ne. 1 19/NQ-CSG dated 16 March 2023, issued by the Board of Directors of Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port),
s subsidiary of the Corporation, approving the restructuring of the loan debt of Saigon Port-55A International Container Services Co., Lid. (S31T)
with credit institutions, in accordance with the Loan Agreement Terms and the Shareholder Financing Agreement. Specifically, the shareholders
agreed to finance the buyout of SSIT"s loan and all outstanding debt obligations, with a total required funding of LISD 48,000,000, of which Saigon
Port contributed USD 24,000,000 (through a term loan of USD 24,000,000 at an exchange rate of 23,518 VNIVUSDY). On 23 June 2023, Saigon Port
completed the disbursement of VND 564,432,000,000 to SSIT under the Shareholder Loan Apgreement dated 28 April 2023, and the S8IT
Restructuring Agreement. The loan has a 5-ycar term, an interest rate of 6.3% per year, and is unsecured.

(i) A loan to SP-PSA Imternational Port Limited Liability Company, denominated in original currency at LISD 16,830,000 under the shareholdar
loan agreement dated 26 August 2008, corresponding to the 51% equity interest held by the Corporation and Saigon Port in SP-PSA Intemational
Port Limited Liability Company. The loan bears interest at the Sofr rate (secured overnight financing rate) and is repayable upon request by PSA
Vietnam Pte Ltd., (the lender),

(iii) Receivable from Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (CICT) under the debt purchase agreement signed between VIMC, 554

Holdings International, and the lenders, as part of the CICT financial restructuring plan, which was approved by the Extraordinary General Mecting
of Sharcholders on 22 July 2024,

34
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J8C
Mo, | Dao Dy Anh, Kim Lien Wasd, Hanol, Yielnam

Form Mo B (9 - DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 20235 to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT™D)

{These nodes are ar dntegrad poer o ivad showld be remd in cogfimetion trith five cocompsanping fuearcial drdemenis)

B OTHER RECEIVABLES
S006F 2025 1AL 2025
Balance Provision Balanze Provision
VI W WD VD
Short-term 1,108,722, 074,603 (41,845,203, 118) 1,1014,081,771,535 (47.177,243,7R2)
- Advances 35,694 827 281 (GOS8, 207, 766) 23.680,410,730 -
= Collaterals and deposits SH,633 826,150 {162, 556,875 AT EATE24 614 (162,556,875)
- Dividends and profits receivable [2,174,550,465 (2,241 ,670.975) 40,250,965 469 (3287420075
- Deposit and loan inferes] receivable 304.410,190,822 (7,713,305,729) 303 208 043,332 (7,733,305,720)
- Payment on perhalf 45,248,323 403 (96,597.406) BD,386.274 300 (96, 597,406)
- Tnput VAT must be collected from Terminal 12,810,751 466 - 12810751 466 -

Mo 2 Project - Ba Meol Port
- Receivables from equitisation 29,137.413,831 - 28,719,686,558 -
- Oher receivables 605,612,191, 184 (31,022 464 36T 577072 664,060 (35,897,362,797)

v Bachdang Shipbuilding Co.,Led (i) 54,027,528.536 ; 52,630,296,044 -

+ Minashin Ocean Shipping One Member Limited 07 070,437,302 12028 202 161} WEOST 412225 (12,932,006 5401

+ Depreciation and Imlerest on assers of bridpe 194 218 263,761 > Fod 215,263 761 -

No. 4 amd No. § aff Chae Ve container yard {if}

+ {rhers 2A0L205 06T 405 (18,044,652, 200 233, oo 692,036 (22,965, 3459511
Long-term 454 330,673,240 - 30T, 034,930, T0H) -
- Collaterals and deposits 134,375,420,951 - 164,599, 664,649 -
= Recelvables from compensation ¢osts for bouses, structures, - . 74, 166,933376 -

crops, and emporary residence expenses
- Other receivables 1199464, 252,289 - 68,268 341 765 -

1,558,061,747,843 {41,845 203,118 1,421.116,711,325 (47,177,243,782)
35



VIETNAMNM MARITIME CORPORATION = JISC
Mo, 1 Dan Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form No B (9a — DN/HN
For the peried from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Tiese moder mee an tntegral pars of and phowld be read I conisncrion with the socompamiag finmeciol stafeme nts)

8.

(ii)

OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'IY

ANDE/2025 0140 72025
Balumce Frovision Halamce Provisbon

YD VND VNI VD
In which: ©ther receivables are related parties 255,072,672,859 (11,228,789, 163) 231,794 609 816 (11,074,539.143)
- Cai Mep Infernational Terminal Co., Lid 1LI39.411,994 1655210725 -
= 5P-PS5A Inteonational Port Co, Lid 227467 268,641 212,537.977,105 -
- Cai Lan Istermatonal Contuiner Port Limited 5,051,347 861 = 5.875.642 238 -
Liahility Coamparny
= Winalines Hoa Lac Logistic JSC - - 324,126,585 -
- Mam Can Port J53C 3510,988.907 (3,310,988,907) 3310988 907 (3,310,988.907)
= Orriental Shipping and Trading JSC 6,719,648 507 (6,602 648, 507) 6,700, 148,507 (6,602 648 507)
- Can Tho Shiphbuilding Intrusicy and Transport JSC 1,06, 651,749 (1,006.651,749) 10,651,740 {1.006,651,749)
= Drang Do Maritime Joint Stock Company - - T4 364,000
= Maritime Constriction Consulting Joint Stock Company 8,044,026, 000 - -
- Viosco Trading and Service Toint Stock Coergary 1114, 81892000 . - -
= Cim The — Thanh Tuan Port Limited Liability Company 154,250, (0 { 34, 250,000) 154 250,000 {154, 250,000

Implementation of Resolution No.3 1 TWNC-CNTT dated 23 November 2015, issued by Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), approving
the reassignment of the debt recipient from SBIC"s entrusted capital source at Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability Company,
related 1o the transfer of the 1,730 TEL - W22 vessel construction investment project from Bien Dong Shipping One Member Co., Ltd. (Bien Daong) to
Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Co., Ltd. {Bach Dang). According to the handover minutes signed on 5 August 2015, Bien Dong transferred this
project along with the related loan principal and interest liabilities to Bach Dang as of 5 August 2015, The outstanding debt represents the remaining
amount receivable from Bach Dang after the transfer of project costs, loan liabilities, and interest expenses (See Note 24 — Loans and Finance Lease
Liabilities for more details),

The amount paid by Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary, into the State Budget, covering depreciation costs and loan interest for Berths
No. 4 and Ne. 5 at Chua Ve Port for the period from 2014 to 31 December 201§, as required by the Ministry of Finance under Official Letter No.
INOBTC-TTr dated 3 April 2020.

6
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YIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = JSC

No. | Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IM
{These notes ane an el parn of oed sham'd be remd in comimction winh the accompmiag mmecin vafermems)

9.

Form No B (Wa — DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2035

DOUBTFUL DEBTS

- Bach Dang Shipbuilding Industry Co..Ltd
- Denmar Chartering & Trading Gmbh

= DIC Investment and Trade JSC

- Vineshin Ocean Shipping Co. Lid

- Nam Trieu Shipping Co.,Ltd

- Cai Mep Intemational Terminal Co., Ltd,
= Cavalier Emerprise, LIAE

- Dihers

S0GS 2025 010172025
Cost Recovernble Cost Recovernhle
vilue vialue
YD YD VYD VD
40230 258319 - 49,239 358,319 -
16,658268,.724 | 6,658,268,724 -
59,797 595,942 - 60,597, 598,042 -
F6,643 5959 993 47935 K05 23.059455.641 47,935,804
21977044 420 - 21.977.044. 420 =
44, 185,009,709 0558.324,775 19, 704,522,031 B, 8431030 048

26, 249038,687
174,943,719,549

28,179.945.226

181 813,458,440

20.436,1 87,616

409,693,538 343 37.786,205,806

393,051,586,523 _ 29,318,063,385
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{These mtes are an imegrad poet of rd stould be recd in confunction i the foenwparping fmmecin) siaes el

Form No B 0% - DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

10, INVENTORIES

IDG20TS 012025

Cosi Frowiston Cost Provision

VND VND VND VND
= Cpppds on transil 2,206 277 024 - .
- Raw materials 441,731,384.251 - 431,641 044 483 -
- Tools and supplies 25,802 45] 981 = 29.133,777.571
< Work in progress 9.206,913,797 - 9. 518,137,150 -
» Goads (%) 23 Add 144,655 (204,319,500, BOF) 219.070,782,5558 (204,319, 5%90,800)

{*) The goods include two ship engines for 47,500 DWT
total value of VND 210,469,590, 800. This project was discontine
Board of Members, These two ship engines are currently being used by
Regional Development Bank Branch under the assef mortgage confract

01,471,171, TOR

(204,319,590, 50M)

GED 385,741,704

(204,319,590,800)

Corporation has made a provision for the impairment of these two ship engines, amounting to YND 204.319,590,800.

{HB-02/03) built at Ha Long Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company, with a
ed following Resolution No. 513/NQ-HBTV dated 6 March 2015, by the Corporation's
he Corporation as collateral with the Vietnam Development Bank — Mortheast
No. 2019%/HBTCTS-NHPT dated 29 August 2019, As of 30 June 2015, the

1L FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
I0Ae/20LS 0101200 4
Cost Fairvalue Cost Fair value
YD VND VNI YND
Held to maturity invesments
Shori-term £,211,712,207,955 £211,712.207 955 5,138, 580,323,941 5,138,580,323,941
Term deposits (*) §.211,712,207,955 5211, 712207935 5,276,990,271,626 £.276,990,271 626
5,211,712,207,955 5,211,712,2007,955 5,276,990,271,626 5,276,990,271,626
(*) Term deposits ranging from 3 to 12 months at commercial banks.
18



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = .J5C
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE INTERI

=

(These noter are @i intepeal part of and thosld be read in comfuncrion Witk dhe eecompamwng finaeciol KTGUEMENTS)

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT"I))
Investment in joint veniures, associates
Company’s name

- Khuyen luong Port 15C

- Cal Lan Intermational Container Terminal Co., Ltd.
- Can Tho Shipbuilding and Transportation J5C

- VOSCO Trading and Service JSC

- Vietnam Sea Transport and Chartering ISC

- Mam Can Port Joint Stock Company

- Thi Vai General Port 15C

- Hai Phong Port Investment Development Service JSC
- Hai Phong Marine Invesment and Trading JSC

- VOSCO Agency and Logistics JSC

- Tan Hung Phuc Maritime Service 15C

- Transportation and Trading Services JSC

- Dong Do Maritime Joint Stock Company

- HPH Logistics JSC

- Cua Lo Port Tugbout and Maritime Service 15C

- %ai Gon Port Logistics JSC

= Dia Mang Port Logistics J5C

- KM Cargo Service Hai Phong Co,,Lid

e d =

Form Mo B 0% - DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

..\‘J—-I—-_'—.-.'
M CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT D))

JD6/2025 01/01/2025
Proportion  Propertion Balance (i) Froportion  Proportion Balance (i}
of voting  of interest of voting  of interesi
rghts rights
Vo % VNI Ve o YND
49.00% 49.00%5 #42,905,160,358 A5 0% 40.00% 38 842 478,997
50.00% 28.34% - 50004 28.34% -
13.45% 33.45% = 3345% 33.45% -
46.45% 23,69% 19,601 (56 460 46.45% 23.69% 20,308,310,076
43.32% 43.32% - 43.32% 43.32% -
49,35% 49.35% - 49.35% 49.35% -
21.00% 13.74% 19377 132,123 21.00% 13.74% 17,000,265 402
I0.52% 28.25% 34,015,702 564 30.52% 2B.25%: 29,757,030,562
4053 38.48% 38.800,509.4 1 40.53% J8.48% 30,990,342 284
36.00% 18.56% 3,933 425698 16% 18.36% 3.219.817,702
20,00% 13,0885 300,000,000 20.00% 13.09% 300,000,000
A31.49% 33400 54 493 66E 687 33.49% 33.49% SR, 18649115
48 9% 48.9T% - 48.97% 48.97% -
I8RI% 35.92% 13,941,517,080 I8 3592% 14,900,653 069
36.00% 18.36% 6,568, 141,935 16.00% 1836% 6,724 806,151
20,12% 18.62% 2,592, 586,600 20.12% | BA62% 2,627.515,041
45, 10% TR 25,378, 338.426 435, 10%% 33.83% 26,000,530,784
3604 33.3% 25,692 673,556 J6.00% 33.32% 23,779,148,807
39
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No B 093 — DN/HN
Mo. | Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam ) For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
These noves are e inregral part of ord sauld be read in cowjunesion with e gerampang ok mtemeni)

1L FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONTI})
Irnvestrent in joint ventures, axsociates (Comt 'd)

Company's name 30062025 0112025
Proportion  Froportion Value (i) Proportion  Froportion Value (i)
of voting  of interest of voting  of interest
rights rights
Y o VND Y e VND
- Smart Logistics Service Co., Ltd. {Hai Phong) 20.00% 18.51% 69,901,663 306 20.00% 18.51% 35495 162,924
- Da Wang Port Tugboat J5C 36.00% 27.00% 31,924,315,536 36.00% 27.00% 31,792,013335
- Bien Dong Logistics Joint Stock Company 21.00% 21.00%% . 21.00%% 210065 =
- Sai Gon Ben Tre Trading Service Transport Logistic 30.00% 13.05% - 30.00% | 3.0%% .
- Comstruction Consulting for Maritime Building ISC A5 (0% A49.00% 19.325,588.457 49,00% 49.00% 27249691922
- Viship Maritime Transport Joint Steck Company 37.00% 37.00% - 37.00% 17.00% -
- Vinalines North-East Joint Stock Company 25.00% 23.14% - 25.00% 23.14% -
- Infermational Maritime and Labor Cooperation JSC 36.00% 36.00% - 36.00% 16.00% -
- Oriental Shipping and Trading JSC (O5TC) 49.00% 49.00% - 49.00% 49.00% =
- §P-SSA Intermational Container Services Joint 50.00% 36.55% B98.450,305,173 50.00% 36.55% 770439259571
Venture Company
- Can Tho - Thanh Tean Port Co.,Ltd 47.19% 46.T2% 4,355,964 (49 47.19% 46,72% 4,276,490,785
- Cai Mep International Tesminal Co., Lid 50.00% 45.82% - S0.00% 45.82% -
- BP-PSA International Port Co.Ltd 50,00% 318.54% 500,772,623.,602 50.00% IR S54%  439,181,278,3035
- Korea Express Sai Gon Port Co,Ltd 30.00% 32.72% 31,250.317.923 S0.00% F1T72% 30.591,830,926
- NYK Auto Logistic Vietnam Co,,Ltd 20.00%% 10.21% 1.B16,365,988 20.00% 1021% 1,955273,059
- Vinalines Dong Do Ship Repair Co., Lid 45.56% 45.56% . 45.56% 45.56% -
- SITC Dinh Vu Logistics Co.Led 50.00% 47.21% 221,645363320 50.00% 47.21%  184,549,146,303
- MNhat Viet International Transport Joint Venture Compai 50.00% S0.00% 16,643 308,519 S0, 00% S0.00% 37,621,103, 450
- Vinalines Honda Logistic Vietnam Co.,Ltd 22.12% 12.55% 7404302291 22.12% 12.55% 7622902383
- Vinalines Hoa Lac Logistics Vietnam Co.Lid 37800 21.49% 5,463,825,290 3T B 21.05% 5,596,276,1446
- VIMC - ARIES Maritime Services Joint Venlure 50.00% 51.00%% 2,666,280,000 0.00% 0.00%% -
Company Limited (ii)
- TIL Hai Phone International Port Company Limited { 46.28% 47.21% 452,277.387.926 0. 00% 0.00%% - -
1,576,599.924,73 1,849,307819,163
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
FThese noter are an infegral part of oed skould be read in confrrction with the acomprinE feancin! stafsen

FINANCIAL INVESTMENT (CONT'D)

Invesiment in other entitles
Company's namne 30062025 0112025

Cost P rovisio It te Cnsi Frovision Rate

YD YHND e VMDD VMDD i
Invesiment in other entities 387,652,344,674  (23,110,200,070) 389,522,247319  (23333,078,200)
Wietnam Maritime Commerncial Joint Siock Bank 22 TR0, 547279 . 0.1 T8 22 802 STE 698 = 0, 17%
Wien Dong Pearl Urban Development Investment 304,001, 500,000 - 5565 300,001,000,000 - 5.56%
Co.Ltd (iv)
QTM Intermational Port Joint Stock Company 33,504,424 002  (21,880,635,6135) 11.35% 31.504.424,002  (21,880,635,615) 1135%
Cuy Mhon Mew Port 18C | &,000,000,000 - 16.68%: 1 &, 00, Ce0 v = 16.68%
Others 13,2768,373,393 (1,229,564 455) 15,034,204 519 {1,452,442,585)
Investment in other entitics by welfare fund 6,000,162,283 {1 O AN (R y G, 000,162,283 {1 00D R DDV
Vietnam Maritime Commencial Joing Stock Bank 2,593,162,283 - 2.593,162,283 i
Oihers 3,407,000,000 _ {1.000,000,000) 3,407,000,000 ( 1,000,000.000)

393 652,506,957 _(24,110.200,070) 305.522,400,602  (24,333,078,200)

(i) For investments owned by the Corporation before 31 December 2016 (the date of enterprise valuation for equitization), the investment value is recorded
hased on the enterprise valuation results for equitization, as approved and announced by the competent authorities.
{ii) The investment under the Joint Venture Apreement between Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company and Global Terminal Limited
Sarl regarding the establishment of TIL Hai Phong International Port Company Limited, in which the proportion of interest is 51%4, and both parties have
equal rights in deciding on significant matters of VIMC - ARIES Maritime Services Joint Venture Company Limited.
(i) The investment under the Joint Venture Agreemenit dated 02 May 2024 between Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company and Global Terminal Limited
Sirl regarding the establishment of TIL Hai Phong International Port Company Limited, in which the proportion of interest is 51%, and both parties have
equal rights in deciding en significant matters of TIL Hai Phong International Port Company Limited.
{iv) Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port), subsidiary of the Corporation, has recorded an investment in the form contributed capital by assets,
specifically a 600-meter-long wharf (K6, K7, KE, K9, and K10) at Nha Rong - Khanh Hei Port, into to Ngoe Vien Dong Investment Development Co.,
Lud. (Ngoc Vien Dong), with a contributed capital value of VND 304,001 ,000,000, equivalent to a 5.6% ownership interest. Saigon Port has not been
able 1o ohtain the fnancial statements of Ngoc Vien Dong Company from 2021 to the present. However, the contributed assets remain under management,
operation, and commercial use by the company. and Ngoc Vien Dong has committed to bearing all costs related o the management and land use
chlizations with the State, in accordance with the Agreement dated 31 August 2017, between Mgoe Vien Dong and Saigon Port. The Board of General
Directors of the Corparation assesses that this investment has not suffered any impairment.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No B 0% — DN/HN
Mo. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thene notey are an freprel poaes o and should be read in comfuncrion with the accompmmying finanoial siaessents)

1% TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Buiklings Mlachinery Yihicles, Mamage me ot Diihers Total
struclures equmipment Transportation eiquipmenis
cquipme nts
Y VI VM YD YD WD
COST
01 A0 /2025 0,554, 169,628,529 3 463,366, TR6,431 16,630 582 815300 247821 846,596 S6065328, 198 29,902,064 1,030,249
. Copnstruction imestment |, 084 BE8 925 696 . 29.271,104,630 . - L1 14,160,030,326
complated
- Purchase in the period f,693,802,439 2,180,800,979 1,764,204 543,151 54,449 820,207 168 499 440 1820787 466,216
- Liguidation, disposals (5,773,146,436) {3,573,968.361)  (1,020,769,941,523) - - (1,030,117,056,320)
- Reclassification 44 048,659 (460,652.6360) (3,224 048.659) 3,6400652,636 - -
- (nher increases/decreases (15,047,676,199) 176 (B64.567.544,092)  (44,552.814,276) (924,168,034,391)
30/06/2025 10,627,075 3,461, 512,966,580 _ 16,544,586,928.807 _ 261,359,505,163 g:_sagg?.ﬂa 30,952,303,436,780
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
01/01/2025 (S073T85,725332)  (1,260,222,759.512) (14,007,386,147,234)  (170,684,310,006) (47,218,577.849)  (21,560,832,145829)
- Depreciation in the period (137,585,501,307) {103,083, 880,973} (420,402,747.8207  (12,008,698,795)  (1.235.586,797) (674,316,416,192)
- Liguidation, dispozals 5,775, 146436 3470822393 861, 751,450,692 - = BT0.095419.521
- Reclassification (218297317) 3,012,087,979 (2,627,851 ,265) (163,939,397) g
= Other increases/decreases 12,114,194,855 3421827 4034408 - 12,121 ESHBE":I
20062025 (5,193,702, 183,165} (1356 éIJITEI}I]lH ! EE‘ﬁ_ﬁ E! E| IIEIEHI‘HEF?HI ;ﬁlﬁﬁlﬁlﬂﬂﬁl (21,352,031,4%1,410)
NET BOOK VALUE
0110172025 __4AB0AB3 003,197 _ 1203144026919 __ 3632,196,668,066 ___77,137.536,590 &;.ﬁgn ___8,401,808,885.120
JN06S2035 S 433373399523 1,104 689,236,476 I,9 ﬂlﬁ!&iﬂ TH,504,591,373 T,‘Fﬂ@,ﬁ: D 4500.271.945370

The historical cost of tangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use as of 30 June 2025, is VHND 10,523,029.662,799 (As at 0]
January 2025: VND 8,891,181,259).

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets pledged as collateral for borrowings as of 30 June 2025, is WND 2,959,921,062,928 (As at 01 January 2025:
VRO 1.345,974,699,456).
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = ISC

Mo | Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form No B (%9 - DN/HN

For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These nodes are an dntepeel paer of ard should be read in confunerion with the aocompanyieg financial anoement)

13, INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST
01012025

-~ Purchase in period
- Disposal
= Oiher decranses

I0/0620ES
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
02025
- Amaortization in period
= Disposal
= [Hher increases
F0/062025

NET BOOK YALUE

A 20rS
DG 2025

Lanid use rights Copy righis and Computer Other intangible Total
Patents Software fined nesets
VND VND VND YND VND
787,551,911,520 351,898,800 132,002 487,152 14566822511 934,473,120,013
. . 27 887,575,077 " 27.887,575.077
2 = (99 855,000) - (99 855,000)
(6,745,606 ,647) = (12,018,693 400) - {18,764,300,047)
T80,806,304,873 351,898,800 147.771,.513,859 14,566,822,511 943 496,540,043
(169,638,421,519) {351,898, 800) (96,433,656,86%)  (14,517.675011)  (180,991,652,199)
(6,770,151,924) {(7.215.973,528) {952,380) (13,987,077,832)
. - o0 855,000 . 49 855,040
2,168,100,74] - 2,168, 100,741

(174,240,472,702)

(351,398 800 (103,599,775, 397)

(14.518,627,391) _ (292,710,774.290)

T B17,913,490,001

35,518,830,313

49,147,500

653,481,467,814

606,565,832,171

44,171, 738,462

48,195,120

650.785,765,753

Cast of fully amortized intangible fixed assets but still in use as at 30 June 2025, is VND 121,436,736,012. (As at 01 Janvary 2025: VND 75,102,581,270).
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietram

Form No B0%a — DN/HN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{{Thexe metes ore cr integral pard of and skould be pead bn comfuncrion wirh the cocompanying francial ratemers)

14, FINANCIAL LEASE FIXED ASSETS

Buildings, Machinery, Total
struciures equipsmieni
YN YND YND
COST
017012025 12,590,437 844 35,700,000,000 5B.190.437.844
0612025 22590437 844 35,700,000,000 58 290.437,844
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
012025 (5,170,975331)  (7,883,750000)  (13,060,725331)
- Depreciationin peried (564,760,944 (BO2 500.000) [1.457.260,944)
304062025 (5,741,736,275) (8,776, 250,000) (14,517,986,275)
NET BOOK VALUE
ULAVL 2025 17,413,462,513 27816250000 45,229,712,513
30062025 16,848,701 569 26,923,750,000 43,772 451,569
15, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
D125 Increase in period  Decrease in period J0AG202S
WD WD VD VNI
COST Bkl 860,575,617 11,793,262 846 - §213.353,856,463
= Land use rights 235,797 3235 BO% 6, 745,606,647 - 262543132455
- Buildings 542 955, 504,829 15047676, 190 = BSRO0Z, 177028
- Infrastructure 2 07 544 980 - - 1R07. 546,580
ACCUMULATED (384,558, 460,934) (34,756, 8406,484) . (419,345 327 418)
DEPRECTIATION
= Land use rights (60,601,002,265) [5.337,148,533) - (G553E 150 T9E)
- Buildings (322,388, 777.897T) (27.081.440,161) = (3494T0 208,058
= Infrastructure [1,568,680,771) (1 368.277,750) - (3,935 948 _562)
HMET BOOK VALUE A17,002,112,683 L1, 703,282 B4 {34,786, 800,484)  404,008.529.045
= Land use rghts 195, 196,523,543 6, 745,606,647 (5,337 148.533) 196,604 981,657
- Buildings 220,566,721,932 15,047 676,199 (27081, 440,161)  208,532958.970
- Infrasimsciurs I,238.B66,208 (2 368,277, 790) (112941158

Investment properties primarily include the land use rights at Cai Mep Port, the International
Maritime Trade Information Center Building at No, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da,
Hanoi, and the Vimadeco Building at No. 163 Nguyen Van Troi, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi
Minh City, which are currently being leased out.

The fair value of these investment properties has not been officially assessed or determined
a8 of 30 June 2025. However, based on the rental situation and market prices of these assets,
the Executive Board of General Directors believes that the fair value of the investment
properties exceeds their carrying amount as of the financial vear-end.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Mo. 1 Dag Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form No Bi9a — DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025
to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

(i Theze mafes arg an infegral part of and shoauld be read in confuncrion with tre eecomprrping finencisl stolements)

1.

FREFAID EXPENSES

Shori-term
- Insurance expense

= Prepaid land rental
- Dispatched 1ools and supplies
- Fined asset repair cost

= Onhers
Loag-term

- Business advantages
= Prepaid land rental

- [rsurance costs

- Repair costs awaiting allocation
- Tools and supplies expenss awaiting
- Pre-operating expenses

- (Khers

30/06/2025 00172025
VND VND
136,304,886,464 79,824,461,633
36,242,629,581 21,284,996,684
3.100,818.918 .
10,850,851,425 18,423,061,033
10,230,228,593 14.618,279,026
75,880,357,947 25498,124 890
427,394,657,163 373,585,689,251
1,583,710,033 1,598,764,474
71.430.536,749 T0,522,864,9534
347,208,122

277972.519492
34,581,910,780

226,194,470,270
46,834,233 085

354,802 468 5,169,139 803
41,123,969,514 23,266,216,685
563,699,543,627  453,410,150,884
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
Mo. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form No B0%a — DN/HN
For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT D))
{These notes are an integrad prer of and shoudd be read in confwaciion witlk U mecompanpiag finonciol stemeeents)

17,

LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS

Lang-term work in progress

- Project of construction of housing for employees of Sai Gon

Port - Phase 2

Constrocion in progress

= Acpiisitions

= Construction in progress

+ Project of 02 container ferminals No, 003, 4 -
Lach Huyen gateway port 1)

+ Consirnction invesimend profect of Sail Gon -
fiep Fineoc (2}

+ Hoa Vang Logisticy Center Praject

* Cai Cnd Porr phaze § (3]

et Cud Pt phaga [T {4)

+ Oiher profects

- Major repair

P

Cost  Recoverable Value Cust Recovernble Value

VNI VND VND VND
39,121,526,904 39,211,826,904 39,221,526.904 39,221,826,9404
30,721 826,004 39,221,826,904 19,221 826,904 39,221,826, M4
3,350,084,822 319 3,350,084,822,319 3,489,131 060,882 3,489, 131,060,552
39,026,920,740 39.026,920,740 45,360,6004,529 45,369 904,579
3,310,397.042,009 3,310,397 042,000 1,442.803,812,356 3,442,803 812,356

2961 909 871, 703

I8 681 653 208

2 Al e arl Tad

J6,68]1, 653,208

J 134812152, 208

0056053743

3.154,812,152.209

360,056,053, 743

35423 173,725 55,625.173.723 30200, 0 11424 30200 11T 424
42 404 035,793 42 404 015,793 42,404,033, 703 42 404,035,793
A7 R2F 4TS R OaT RIS 4TS S 047 823475 B 4T H25, 475
0% 128 382 105 FO5 128382, 105 el A N 206,883, 745, 15308
Ba0.859 570 660,859,570 957,343,997 Q57T 343,907
3,389.306,649,223 3&;[&,5‘-’9.,113 3,518,351 BR7, 786 3,535-.35;_@.755
4
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No B0% — DN/HN
o, | Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam For the period from 01 Janvary 2025 to 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT™IN
{These notes are ar infegr! poed of and should be reod e conjunction Wi S mecowyaHime Aeancial SR

17. LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'D)

{1} Project Information — Construction of container terminals No. 3 and No. 4 &t Hai Phong Intemational Gateway Port (Lach Huyen Port Area), Hai Phong
City

- Investor: Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company;

- Purpose: To meet the development schedule of investment and construction projects for economic and social infrastructure in Hai Phong City

- Location: Lach Huyen Port Area, within Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Feconomic Zone, Cat Hai District, Hai Phong City;

. Total investment capital: VND 6,946 billion;

. Project implementation and expected completion timeline: From 2020 to 2025,

. Investment capital sources: Estimated 55% loan financing and 45% equity capital;

- Project scope: Construction of 02 terminals for ships up to 100, (00DWT (nearly 8,000 teus) with a total length of 750m, a width of S0m, Barge
and service terminal with a total length of 250m (including $0m width of the main berth), 15m wide for ships up to 3,000 DWT (nearly 160 teu);
Bank protection cmbankment; System of storage yards, roads, auxiliary works and technical infrastructure, synchronous equipment (meeting goods
output through 1.0 - 1.1 million tews/year) on an area of 47 ha: The main equipment for exploitation: 06 5T5 cranes on the main wharf; 24 RTGs; 02
RSD Torklifts; 01 empty forklift; S0 tractors + trailers; 01 repair workshop crane, 08 vehicle scales at the port gate and Terminal Operating System
(TOS) software for port management;

As at 30 June 2075, the implementation progress of the main project components is as follows
EC Package:
Completed all items under the package, except for the X-ray scanning area as requested by Custom.
Package TBO1 “Supply of 06 5T5 and 24 RTG Cranes:
- Equipment transportation was completed mn March 2105, Handover of 03 STS cranes and 08 RTG cranes to the operator has been completed.
- Trial runs and subsequent handovers are being carried out (Batch 02 scheduled in Q3/2025).
Information Technology System:
- Package TBO6 “Procurement of container management and operation software and application (TOS)™ Training on equipment has been
implemented. Adjustments and additions are heing made in accordance with requirements
- Package PC “Procurement of goods, equipment, intemnal soltware for database, and construction of 1T infrastructure™
+ Installation of network cabling to power poles and newly delivered squipment.
+ Installation of equipment at the main gate.
Finalising fixes for issues arising during the official operaticn of the Smartgate/'checking point system..
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There mates dre an iategrd gt of and showld be red i canfuncrion with e ecoovmparying fimeeclnl sieiementi)

17,

LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'DY)

Remaining works other than EC Package and Fire Prevention & Fighting System:

Progtess of construction packages XL0Z, XL01 is as follows:
Package XL0/; Construction of Power Supply System:
- Impartation of equipment and generators;
- Congtruction of substations T1, TS and cable trench system.
Package XL02: Construction and installation of internal roads and yards, administration building, workers' dormitory, workshops and gantry crane
waorkshop, gates and fencing, fire prevention and fighting system, and other infrastruciure and auxiliary works:
- Ground treatment: Completed surcharge for designated areas;
- Container yard: Base course under construction; RTG running path completed approx. 40%; crane beam foundation approx. 30%;
- Office building: Completed in June 2025,
- Workers' dormitory: Completed in June 2005;
- Auxiliary gate: All works completed on 13 March 2025;
- Temporary road in front of auxiliary gate: Completed on 2 March 2025;
- Perimeter fence in front of port: Pile foundation under construction (cumulative approx. 220 piles);
. Toilet building at access road to Berth 3: Completed in February 2025,
- Toilet building at end road of Berth 4; Wall construction in progress;
- One-storey and two-storey parking houses; Completed in June 2025;
- Main gate: Roof structure under construction.

{2} General information about the project

- Investor; Saigon — Hiep Phuoc Port Joint Stock Company;

. Address: DI0C, DT Road, Hiep Phuse Industrial Park, Wha Be Disinct, Ho Chi Minh City.

- Purpose: To facilitate the relocation of the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port of Sai Gon Port in accordance with Official Letter No, 1603/TTg-CN dated
10 October 2006, issued by the Prime Minister, allowing investment in ports along the Saigon River.,

- Scale; 36.06 ha;

- Total investment capital: YND 2,777 billion;

- Status of the project: The project has completed 800 meters of berths, twa warehouses, and | 18,000 m® of cargo yards. The remaining infrastracture
i« till under simultanecus construction and operation, utilizing completed facilities. The expected completion date is May 2025,
On 12 October 2022, the Company submitted Proposal No. 9%SPH-2022 to the Board of Directors and is awaiting the Board’s approval of the
revised budget. Accordingly, the administralive expenses under the revised budget amount to VNI 56,746,708 000. As at 30 June 2025, the value
of completed construction works temporarily capitalised as fixed assels was VND 1,776,977,187,962. The Company is in the process of finalising
the documentation to obtain approval for the adjusiment of the project’s investment cost estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These iones are an integrol part of aad shantd be read in confunchion ik i mecowpariE fTmancim stalemenis)

17, LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'D)

(3} Investor: Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company
. Construction purpose: Land reclamation of 23.4 hectares, enhancing the best exploitation of the potential of the central maritime

exchange hub in the Mckong Delta region, creating a driving force to accelerate the economic development process, primarily for
Can Tho city.

- Construetion location: Tan Phu Ward, Cai Rang District, Can Tho City.

- Total investment: 230.3 billion VND

- Start and expected completion date: From 2002 to 2011, currently extended bevond the original schedule.

- Project status as of 30/06/2025: The project has been completed and put into operation for an arca of 9.5 hectares, The remaining area
has just been leveled, and a seawall has been huilt, but necessary infrastructure for port operations has not been invested in vet, The
company is continuing to invest to complete the project’s components for business operations.

t4) Investor: Can Tho Port Joint Stock Comparry

. Construetion purpose: Development of Cai Cui Port with a capacity of 4.0 - 4,5 million tons/year, receiving vessels with a capacity
of up to 20,000 DWT, enhancing the besi exploitation of the potential of the central maritime exchange hub in the Mekong Delta
region, crealing a driving force to accelerate the economic development process, primarily for Can Tho city.

- Construction location: Tan Phu Ward, Cai Rang District, Can Tho City.

- Total investment: 829.8 billion YND

. Start date: From 2009, currently extended beyond the original schedule.

- Project status as of 30/06/2025: The project has just carried out land reclamation and completed some small components. The company
is waiting to finalize legal procedures and raise funds to continue the investment and complete the project components for business
operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes are an bitegral part of and shoald be recd in camjwiction with the aecowmprring fimancial siriemen)

For the period from 01 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

18, SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

30/06/2025 01012025
Balance  Amount expecied Balance  Amount expected
to he settled to be settled
VMDD VND YND YD
Related Parties 23,988,197,422 23,088,197.422 26,364,572,900  26,364,572,900
- Nisat Viet International Transport Co., Ltd. 390,411,630 - - -
- Maritime Construction Consulting JSC 181,825, 0400k 151 825000 2082029708 2,082,029 708
- Cai Mep International Port Co., Lid. HAE. 361,304 GEE,361,304 49 500, (0 45, 500,000
. BP-8SA [aternations] Cordainer Services Joint 340,315,132 340,315,132 a -
Vendure Company
- Korea Express Saigon Port Co., Lid. 1,579.850,593 1,579, 850,593 787,722,782 TR A2,TR2
- SP-PSA International Port Co., Lad, 642,061,163 G42.961,163 142.441,583 142,441,583
- D Mang Port Logistics Joint Stock Company 4,07%,927,135 4,078.927,135 3,119,967,702 3,119,967,702
- [ Nang Port Tugboat Joint Stock Company 0,982 714,803 Log2 714,803 0.826,865,009 G R2G6 BG5S 009
. Cai Lan Imernational Container Port Co., Lid. 3,043,518, 480 3043 518,480 3575217870 3,575,217,870
- HPH Logistics Joint Stock Company 20,779,200 20,779,200 239.620,463 239,620,463
- Dong Do Maritime Joint Stock Comparty - - 2004 677,253 2,004,677,253
- Vosca Trading and Services Joint Stock Company 2,623,208.974 2,623,208,974 504,464,360 594,464,360
- 8G 55A Imernational Container Services JV Co., Lid. - - 3,396,706,292 3306,706,292
- Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime Services 15C 41 032,558 405 932,558 - -
= Spigon Maritime Joint Stock Company - - A0, 263,266 404,263,266
- Maritime Industrial Services loint Stock Compamy - - 141,096,603 141,086,503
- NYK Ao Logistics (Vietnam) Co.,,Ltd 5301360 5,391.360 - -
Mher parlies 1.659,745,683377  1,659,745,683.377 1,671 665406826  1.671,665406,826
- Ha Long Shipbuilding Co., Lad 3T.067,142,734 32067142734 32067,142,734 32.067,142,734
- Waterway Constrection Corporation —J5C —~Branch 01 24,205,404, 807 24205404807 16,665,30M,635 16,665,3009,635
- MITSUT E&S CO, LTD 122,735 816,812 122735816812 534,268,517,506 534,268,317,5006
- Phu Xuan Consulting and Construction JSC 304,750,511 3,684 304,750,513 ,684 246 886,354,740 246 880,354 Tde
- Bach Dang Shipbuilding Compiny Limited T2.B06,298,515 72,806 298,515 T2R06.298,515 T2.806,208.515
Cthers 1,103,180,506.825 1, 103,1 80,506,825 THR.971.983,6590 ?ﬁﬁﬂl.ﬂﬂl.ﬁﬂﬂ
Total __1,683,733,880,793 1,683,733, 880,799  1,698.029.979.716 1,698,029,979,726
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19, TAX AND OTHER FPAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

Tax payables

- Value added tax

= Export, import duties

- Corporate income fax

. Persomal income tax

- Land tax, land rental {*)

= Evironmental taxes

- Fees, charpes and other payables

Tax reccivables

- Value added tax

- Corporate income tax

- Personal income fax

- Land tex, land rental (*)

- Fees, charges and other payebles

01/01/2025 Payables for Paid during J0/06/2025
the period the period
VND VND VND VND
11, 457,877,795 258,716,348, 143 252,563,246,839 17.6010,979,099
- 34,264,585 816 34,204 8B5S 816 .
[87.987,791,842 235,.810,999.759 190,946, 1 18457 232 B52,673,144
14.471,785383 £3,113480,088 29,614.055,766 7.971,209,707
91.368,223.5310 (23,643, 520933 T2.016,104,777 142,095,648,672
- 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
423061 672 30214421285 28,891,203,931 5.553,829,026
,’Hﬁlélﬁg!ﬁ]; 1 TﬁS.‘Tﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ G691 98,615,586 ik 84 330,648
01/01/2025  Paid during the period Payuhbles for the J06S20LS
period
VD VND VND VYND
2,771,842,323 68,746,069 BH, 77058 2,751 ,801.934
B.443 868,058 116,032,006 65,101,238 B 494,798,910
B38.462.002 614,985.824 853,042,832 H00,405,084
127,174, 780,026 B.651,884.005 5,950,541,376 129.876,123,533
- 11,645,191 9,645,191 2,000,000
139,228,952 459 9,463,294 685 6,967,117,695 141,725,129 489
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1%

20,

TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET (CONT'DY)
(*) Including:

Saigon Port has temporarily estimated the remaining land rental fees payable for the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi Port area up to the time the Company signed an agreement with Ngoe Vien
Dong Urban Development Investment Co., Lid, (Ngoc Vien Dong), the investor of the Wha
Rong - Khanh Hei Port Project, under Invesiment Policy Decision No., 631 5/QD-UBND dated
20 December 2016, issued by the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. The estimated
amount is VND 40,247,522,180, The company has engaged in multiple correspondences with
the Ho Chi Minh City Tax Department regarding land rental fees for this area for the period
from 01 January 2017 to 31 August 2017. However, as of the date of this report, the company
has not vet received a final response from the competent authority.

Saigon Port has made temporary payments for land rental and land tax for the period from
2015 to 2020 at Tan Thuan 1 and Tan Thuan 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Dong) as per the notifications
from the District 7 Tax Department, Ho Chi Minh City, totaling WND 124,474,343 ,440. The
tax suthority applied the office rental unit price to cakeulate the land rental fee for the entire
leased area. However, in reality, most of the leased area is used for berths and warchouses,
which have lower rental unit prices than those used by the tax authority. Accordingly, the
company has sent multiple official correspondences to the Tax Department - Hao Chi Minh
City and other relevant autherities regarding the determination of area, unit price, and usage
purpase for the leased land based on the mentioned notifications. As of the date of this report,
the company has niot vet received a final response from these authorities.

ACCRUED EXPENSES
306205 01/01/2025
YD VND
Short-term 2600450081122 2,313,842,060,507
- Interest expense (*) 2344442912780 2,250,074,143,398
- Expense for public works of housing areas 15,197,143,842 [5,389,773,022
for emplovess of Sai Gon Port
- Cost of services rended 15,525, 085,065 6. 798,753,561
- Land tax payable 3,786,141,019 441,200,387
- (thers 221,498, 798416 41,138,181,139
Lomg-te rm 13,882,563, 321 13,882,563 312
- Land tax payahbe 13,882,563,322 13,882,563 322
2614332,644444  1,317,724,623,829

(*) It includes the payable balance to Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Finance Company
Limited (“VFC™) as at 30 June 2025, comprising a VND-denominated loan of VND
743 609,605,236, including VD 324,529,135,493 and USD 16,728,423.67 (as at | January
2025: VND 321,225,583,789 and USD 16,728.423.67). According to the confirmation letter
and interest notice from VFC, the principal and interest receivable balances recorded by VFC
were higher than those recognised by Bien Dong as at 30 June 2025 by USD 28,667,314.77
and TISD 65,684,860.04, respectively. These relate to the loan principal and interest of the
financing arrangement for the construction of the 1,730 TEU Container Vessel V22, which
has been transferred to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Company Limited (see also
Note & — Other receivables and Mote 24 — Loans and finance lease obligations).
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1. UNEARNED REVENUES

Short-term

- Revenue from warchouss and premises remtals
- Advance revenue from shipping activities

- Bevenue from port operations

= Uneamed revenue from trading activities

- Others

Long-term

= Revenue from warehouse and premises rertals
- Unearmed revenue arising from capital
comribution transactions by fixed pssets

- Others

12, OTHER FAYABLES

Short-term

= Trade union fee

- Spcinl insuranee

Health insurance

Unemployment insurance

Pavable on equitization

Shert-term deposits, collateral received
Other payables

+ Dividend, profit payables

+ Imterest payabiles 1o Bark and other
institutions {1}

+ Payment on behall of and amount
received to pay shipping (ines on behalf of
+ Employees’ PIT has not yet been finalized
+ Compensation costs for the relocation of
Hoawng Dieu Fort i2)

+ (Mthers

021,335,697,217
104,436,990,114

94,104,174,040

211394077931

J0M062025 01012025
YND YND
163,860,149 666 25249417 363
B,721,410,792 3642452775

- 4267032584

- 10,151,840,748
141.809.672.480 -
13,329,066,394 7,188,091, 256
26,358,358,109 44,734,415,104
39,047,435,296 44,734 415,104
49,315,635 593 -
TOT428T 220 -
260.218.507.775 69,983,832 467
30/06/2025 01/0172025
YD VMDD
1,587,239.432,740 1,542, 820,618,819
10,051,276,919 10,041,294, 296
3,288,420,640 376,559,352
3BT 649,083 03,803 825
219643251 165,345,568
16023529579 160,235,295,79]
17.191,099.656 18333909476
1.395,866,046,500 1,353,574,320,511
64,505, 107,198 15,057,717.924

044,405,233 4121
T1.740,689,008

6,101,369,870
94,020,613,821

222, 248.676,467
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¥ 3

OTHER PAYABLES (CONT'D)

Long-term

= Lomg=term deposit, collaretal received

- Other pavablas

- Popable to Fien Dong Pearl Uirban
Development Tnvestment Co., Lid i
advances for the relocation and support of
emplayees (31

- Payable to the State budget in capital
advances for the implementation of Saigan-
Hiep Fhigpr Port consirnction fmvesimment
profect (4]

= Temporarily increese IR e originad
cost of ship (Lucky Star, Blue Star,
Fiosca Sunvisgl (5)

= Stiplusilaling Indusiry Covporarion -
Advernee capital [6)

- hher pavables

Other short-term payables are

related parties

- Saigon Forl - S5A Infernational Container
Services Joint Venture Company

- 8P - PSA International Port Company Limited'
- Korea Express Saigon Fort Company Limited
- Thi Vai General Port Joint Stock Company

- Danamg Port Tughoat Joint Stock Company

- Diong Do Maritime Joint Stock Compay

- East Sea Logistics Joint Stock Company

= 8ITC - Dinh Vu Logistics Co,, Lid.

= Maritime Construction Consultancy Toint
Stock Company

i1y Incleding:

30/06/2025 010172025
VND VND
2,372,742,490,583 1,381,238,467,846
GhA29 458,015 104,315,719, 784
2,306,313 032,868 2,276,922, 748,062
£50,000,000.000 £50,000,000.000
S90.000,000,000 S00 e, D00, 000

487,172,201,784

487,172,201,784

191,025,462,572 191,025,462,572
179,115,368,512 149,725 083,706
3,059,981,923,623 3,924,059 086,665
J006/2025 01/0172025

VND VND
1.664,014,180 6.372,497,620

; 4,455 468,624

147,029,624 484,526,024

- 30,500,000

1,085,063,376 224,573,843
940,751,000 1,157,429,129

Iqjgﬁ r""'gﬂ.s I I -

. 60,000,000

3,260,056 -
D21411.613 92 411,613

- Interest payable to the Vietnam Development Bank — Can Tho Regional Branch
related to a loan agreement for the investment and construction of the Hau Giang
Shipyard amounts to spproximately VND 308 hillion, After the debt rescheduling
period under Resolution Mo. 107/NQ-CP dated [0 October 2007, issued by the
Government, this loan continues to accree interest at the bank's announced interest

rate,
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1. OTHER PAYABLES (CONT'IN)

2)

)

Interest payahle to Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability
Company (VFC), amounting to over VND 28.6 billion, related to a loan agrecment for
the investment and construction of the Hau Giang Shipyard. This project was part of
the USD 600 million foreign loan-funded project portfolio, as stipulated in Decision
Mo. 1986/QD-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June 2007, issued by the Board of Directors of
Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Group (Vinashin), with an interest rate of 9.3% per
annum and a loan value of VD 28.6 billion. As of now, the Hau Giang Shipyard
Project has been permanently discontinued under Official Letter No. 403/TTe-KTN
dated 29 March 2012, issued by the Prime Minister. This foreign loan was restructured
under Resolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the Government,
with & preferential interest rate, and the company is currently accruing interest at a
rate of 1.2% per annum, However, the Company and VFC have not yel reached an
agreement on the applicable interest rate for the loan principal from VFC since the
issuance of Resolution No. 107/NQ-CP. VFC has not yet implemented the debt
restructuring under the resolution and continues to apply the contractual interest rate
of 9.5% per annum 1o the Company, the accumulated interest difference as at 30 June
2025 was VND 70,998,816,910 (as at | January 2025: VND 67,676,841.205).

Interest payable to the Vietnam Development Bank under loan agreements for
investment in shipbuilding projects, with a total value of approximately YND 490
billicn,

In 2024, Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company (“Hai Phong Port™) — a subsidiary -
received more than VND 319 billion from the People's Committee of Ngo Quyen District
to ensure the relocation of Hoang Dieu Port, pursuant to Decision No. 3983/QD-UBND
and Decision No. 3984/QD-UBND dated 22 December 2023 of the People’s Comm ithes
of Ngo Quyen District on land acquisition; Decision No. 982/QD-UBND dated 22
December 2023, Decision No, 4274/QD-UBND dated 28 December 2023, Decision No.
347/QD-UBND dated 15 March 2024, and Decision No. 2459/0D-UBND dated |
October 2024 of the People’s Committee of Ngo Quyen District on approval of
compensation plans for Hai Phong Porl Joint Stock Company, Of this amount,
compensation for refocation of assets was VND 94.3 billion. As at 30 June 20235, the
outstanding balance of compensation expenses for the relocation of Hoang Dieu Port was
VD 94.2 billion.

Payable to Ngoe Vien Dong Urban Dievelopment Investment Co., Litd (Ngoc Vien Dong).
This payable relates to capital advances provided by Ngoe Vien Dong in response Lo the
capital requirements of Saigon Por Joint Stock Company from 2013 to 2015, as
approved by the Ministry of Transport, for the construction and operation of Phase 1 of
the Saigon - Hicp Phuoe Port project (now under the management of Saigon Hiep Phuoc
Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of the Corporation). Under the handover
agreement dated 31 August 2017, Ngoo Vien Dong agreed to temporarily return the
original condition of the premises to allow the Company to continue MANAEINE,
operating, and conducting business at the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi area while the
construction of Saigon - Hiep Phuoe Port remains incomplete. The Company is
responsible for completing the relocation and nsset handling process, provided that Ngoc
Vien Dong completes all legal procedures related 1o land use rights, During this period,
the Company will not bear any related land use costs {effective from 31 August 2017).
Chmce the relocation process is completed, the settlement of this capital advance will be
carried out between Saigon Port, the Ministry of Finance, and Ngoe Vien Dong-
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72,  OTHER PAYABLES (CONT'D)

{4) This payable relstes to an advance received from the State Budget in 2009 and 2010 by
Saigon Port to finance the investment and construction of the Saigon - Hiep Phuoc Port
project, which is now managed by Saigon Hiep Phuoc Port Joint Stock Company, a
subsidiary of the Company. According to Decision No. 46/201 WQD-TTg dated 24 June
2010, issucd by the Prime Minister, this capital advance must be repaid to the State
Budget once the construction of the Saigon - Hiep Phuoc Port project is completed. As
of now, the project remains under construction,

{5) Provision for payable to increase the cost of fixed asscts at Vietnam Ocean Shipping Joint
Stock Company. The Company is in the process of finalizing documentation to settle the
cost of the vessels Lucky Star, Blue Star, and Vosco Sonrise, including prepayments
made to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company and Nam
Trieu Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company.

{6) Payables to Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (*SBIC") in relation to capital allocations
bearing interest received during the peried from the Company’s establishment to 2009,
associated with the investment in the Hau Giang Shipyard Project. This project was
permanently terminated pursuant to Official Letter No. 403/TTg-KTN of the Prime
Minister dated 29 March 2012, The accrued interest on this debt was restructured, with
such accrued interest being written off under Resolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated 10
October 2017 of the Govemment. As at 30 June 2025, SBIC had not yet implemented
the sbove Resolution of the Government and continued to charge interest to the Company
on an annual basis.

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIARILITIES

Dieferred imcome tux liabilities

|

/062025 01012025
VND YND
Deferred income tax liabilities 444,616,204,071 468,876.542,108
arising from deductible
temporary differences
444,616,204,071 468,876,542,109
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24, LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

D01/ 2025 During period H062NLE

Balance Amounis expected Inerease Decrense Balanee  Amounts expected

to be settled i b settled

VND WINID VND VND WM VND

Short-term loans 1280673086345 1,280,673,986, 345 450, 218,365,306 354,344,647 619 1,478,308, 224,083 1478 308,214 083

Short=term foans 117,729,150,726 117, 729,150,726 3070151818 211,349,728,024 48, 187 0649 611 248187 0649611

Current portion of long- 1,162,944 835619  1,162,944,835,619 142,226,013 428 142,5%4,919,595 1,230,121,154.472  1,230,121,154,472

term loans

Long-term loans 1.999.540,682.841  1,999,540,682,841  2,640,039.942,752  1MN,LTI2220,663 3632044561138  5,632,044,561,138

Total 3@,333@4!3 __3.280,223,669,186 3090258308058 1 DG 5,110,352,765,221 5.110,352,785,221
Short-term borrowings

Currency Interest role'year Guaraniee I 002025

Viemam Shipbuilding Finance Co. Lid (1) UsD Specified in each loan sgreement  Unsecured S0,080,000,000

Vietnarm Development Bank VND Specified In each Joan agreement  Collateral 1,082,963,514,078

O34 due boan (3) =D Specified in each loan agreement  Unsecured 26,358,199 _BGE

Others WHD Specified in each loan agreement  Unsecured, Collateral 30%,906,510,137

1,478,308,224,083

Wy oy, T
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24,

(1)

LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)

Loag-term borrowlings

Cuarrency Interest rafe'year Guarantee 30062025

VMDD

Vietnam Development Bank VD Specified in cach loan agreement  Unsecured, Collateral 235026375507
Vietnom Shipbuilding Fmance Co.,Ltd {1} LsD Specified in cach loan agreement  Unsecured 46,495.501,428
PSA VietMam Pre.Ltd (2] LIS Specified in each loan agreement  Unsecured 438,352, 200,000
Long-term ODA lean (3) UsD specified i each loan agreement  Unsecured 470,084, 97 ] ,6A
X2 Mang City Invediment and Development Fund WND Specified in each loan agreement  Unsecured 231,619,00:0,000
Others ¥ND Specified in cach loan agreement  Unsecured, Collateral 2,200,566,511,534

3,632.044,561,138

Including:

The loan of Bien Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company (“Bien Dong™) with Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited
Liability Company ("VFC™) had an outstanding balance of VIND 39,080,000,000 as at 30 June 2025 (1 January 2025: VWD 59,080_000,000). This loan
was obtained to finance the 1,730 TEU Container Yesse| Project V22, which has been transferred to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Limited
Liability Company (“Bach Dang™). Specifically, pursuant to Resolution No. 31 7/NQ-CNTT dated 23 November 2015 of Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry
Caorporation approving the transfer of the debtor under the entrusted funds of the Corporation at VFC in relation to the transfer of the 1,730 TEU — V22
WVessel Investment Project from Bien Dong to Bach Dang, and based on the Handover Minutes signed on 5 August 2015 between the Company and Bach
Dang, Bien Dong transferred this project together with the related loan principal and interest to Bach Dang from 5 August 2015,

The loan from VFC was used to implement investment projects of Hau Giang Ome Member Limited Liability Shipyard Company according to the list of
projects using the 5600 million foreign loan fund stipulated in Decision No. 1986/0BD-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June 2007, of the Board of Directors of the
Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Group. The loan carries an interest rate of 9.5% per year, with a loan term of 10 vears from the first disbursement date
and a grace period of 2 years. The initial principal loan balance in VND was muteally agreed upon by the parties 1o be converted to USD at 1,970,144.91
USD. This loan is secured by assets formed from the loan capital. The loan was resinuctured according to Government Resolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated
10 October 2017. As of 31 December, the company has cumulatively paid VFC VND 3.3 billion, equivalent to approximately USD.146,133.96 Through
the Vinashin restructuring agresment, all outstanding debt has been agreed upon by creditors to be deferred until 30 December 2025, with an interest rate
of 1% per year, which will be caleulated at the end of the period.
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2.
2)

(3]

LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONT'IY)

Loan details:

PSA Vietnam Pte. Ltd.. Saigon Port Joint Siock Company, and Vietnam Mational Shipping Lines — JSC are shareholders of SP-PSA International Port
Limited Liability Company. The shareholders agreed to provide a loan to SP-FSA under the shareholder loan agreement dated 26 August 2008, with a
total lean amount of USD 33,000,000, comprising: Tranche A of USD 28,196,202,53 and Tranche B of USD 4,803,797.47. PSA Vietnam Pre. Ltd.
advanced the entire loan amount, and the Corporation and Saigon Port will assume the loan obligation 1o PSA Vietnam Pre. Lid., with total principal of
USD 16,830,000 (USD 4,950,000 by the Corporation and USD 11,880,000 by Saigon Port, correspending to their respective equity interests of 15% and
36% in SP-PSA),

Lean Purpose: The loan was used for SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd. to cover project development costs, design, engineenng, procurement of
materials and equipment, construction, operations, installation, completion, financing, maintenance, marketing, replacement, and repair of a two-berth
container port located in Phu My Town, Tan Thanh District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province. This includes a 600-meter berth and several quay cranes.
Lean Interest Rate: The interest rate applied under the Shareholder Loan Agreement was based on the S-month LIBOR. rate. From 16 December 2023,
PSA has notified that the inferest rate will be temporarily calculated based on the Secured Ovemnight Financing Rate (SOFR).

As per the Supplementary Agreement (signed on 26 May 2008, between SP-PSA, its shareholders, and Calyon), all outstanding debts of SP-PSA
International Port Co., Ltd. that were not advanced by sharcholders must be repaid immediately upon request by the shareholders or the advancing
shareholders, Furthermore, under the Sharcholder Loan Agreement, all dividends and other distributed amounts (if any, for Vietnam Maritime
Corporation and Saigon Port) under the Joint Venture Agreement or Articles of Association will be prioritized for repaying the principal loan (and accrued
interest) until the loan is fully setiled. At the time of preparing the consolidated Minancial statements, Vietnam Maritime Corporation and Saigen Port are
still in discussions with relevant partics to finalize the contract addendum and the basis for calculating receivable and payable interest.

Including:

The loan balance under Loan Agreement No, 0272004 TDNN, dated 21 December 2004, signed between the Hai Phong Branch of the Development
Support Fund and Hai Phong Port (now Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company). The loan was taken to invest in equipment for the "Hai Phong Pon
Upgrade and Renovation Project - Phase 11" project. 1t is an unsecured loan with an interest rate of 1.3% per year, with the final principal and interest
pavment due on 20 August 2029, As of 30 June 2025, the outstanding principal balance in Japanese Yen (JPY) is JPY 784,283,500.00 (equivalent 1o
YND 121,509,042,655), of which the current portion of long-term debt due is JPY 156,856,700.00 (equivalent to YIND 26 358,199 368 ).

The recognized debt value related 1o Berths No. 04 and Mo, 05 and the container vard at Chua Ve Terminal - Hai Phong Port. along with other allocated
costs, was recorded based on Decision No. 4196/0D-BGTVT, issued on 25 November 2015, by the Ministry of Transport. The total recognized debt
value 15 YD 383.3 billion.

According to Decision No. 4196/0B-BGTVT and the Minutes of Inspection and Determination of State Capital Value, along with the settlement of
proceeds from the equitization of Hai Phong Port One Member Limited Lisbility Company at the time of its official transition to a joint-stock company,
which was signed between the Working Group of Vietnam Maritime Corporation and the company’s representatives on 10 October 2016, the company
hes temporarily adjusted the value of the aforementioned assets and equipment and recognized the loan value at a total amount of VNI 383.3 billion
(including VND 342.1 billion as the settled value of the two berths and WYND 41.2 billion as other allocated costs for the equipment package within the
project). This recognition was retrospectively adjusted by the company as of 1 July 2014 (the date the company officially transitioned into a joint-stock
company).
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4.

LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONT D)

At present, the borrowing and repayment plan (including loan term, repayment plan, interest rate, and security terms), as well as the currency of the debt
recognition {Vietnamese Dong or Japanese Yen), has not been approved by the relevant State management agencies at the time of debt recognition,
Therefore, the company has temporarily recorded these loans in Vietnamese Dong and has accrued interest expenses for the period from | July 2014, to
31 December 2019, at an interest rate of 9.5% per year, plus a re-lending cost of 0.2% per year. In 2020, pursuant to Resolution No, 71/NQ-CHE dated
12 June 2020, of the Board of Directors of Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company, the company ceased accruing interest expenses from the beginning
of 2020.

In Official Letter Mo, 871 5BTC-PLN dated 23 July 2018, from the Ministry of Finance and Official Letter No. 105382/VPCP-KTTH dated 1 Movember
2018, from the Government Office, the Government Office agreed with the Ministry of Finance’s proposal to review the basis for recognizing the value
of Berths Mo, 4 and No. 5, as well as the associated loan conditions. The Government Office also approved the policy of re-lending the equipment costs
under a mechanism similar to that approved by the Prime Minister in Official Letter No. 1596/CP-QHQT dated 25 October 2004, Specifically, the re-
lending interest rate in Japanese Yen is 1.5% per year. Additionally, the Ministry of Finance has required a re-examination of the company’s equitization
process (since the settlement of State capital value at the time of cquitization has not yet been approved by the competent suthorities). Once the Ministry
of Finance officially approves the loan and repayment plan, the company will adjust its financial statements accordingly, if necessary.

On 11 Movember 2022, the Government Office issued Official Letter No. 7642/VPCP-CN, conveying the directive of Deputy Prime Minister Le Van
Thanh, requiring the Ministry of Transport (MOT) o lead coordination with the Ministry of Finance and relevant agencies to study and carefully review
the possible solutions for managing and operating Berths No. 4 and No. 5 of Chua Ve Terminal, ensuring that the approach aligns with the ectual asset
conditions, operational management, and refevant legal regulations.

On 28 September 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Official Letter No. 10882/BGTVT-TC 1o the Ministry of Finance, seeking input on a drafi
Decree on the management, use, and operation of maritime infrastructure assets (which will replace Decree No. 437201 B/ND-CP dated 12 March 2018).
In this proposal, the Ministry of Transport suggested adding provisions in the transitional clauses to allow Hai Phong Port to manage and operate Berths
Mo, 4 and No. 5 {rather than leasing them), should the proposal be approved. On 24 December 2024, the Government Office issued Notice Na. 569/ TH-
VPCF, summarizing the conclusions of Deputy Prime Minister Tran Hong Ha at a meeting regarding the Government’s drafi decree on the management,
use, and operation of inland waterway infrastrueture assets. The Deputy Prime Minister agreed not to include transitional handling provisions in the
decree for maritime infrastructure assets formed from State capital. At the same fime, the Ministry of Transport and the Ministry of Finance were
instructed to urgently report a solution for handling these assets.
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18, OWNERS" EQUITY
151 CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY
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25.

151

253

OWNERS' EQUITY ({CONT'DY)
DETAILS OF OWNERS" EQUITY
300672025 01/01/2025
YND _ Rate VYND  Rate
State contributed capital 11,942,133,000,000 99.47% 11,942,133,000,000 %947
Contributed capital of
other sharcholders 63,747,000,000  .53% 63,747,000,000  0.353%
12,005 880,000,000 100%  12,005880,000,000  100%
EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS
From 010172025 From 00012024
o 3062025 o J0Ah6S 2024
) VD VD
- Contributed charter capital
+ Capital contribution at the beginning of the 12,005 880,000,000 12,005,880,000.000
period
+ Capital eontribution increased during the - =
period
+ Capital contribution decreased during the - .
period
¢ Capital contribution at the end of the perfod ~ 12,005,880,000,000  12,005,880,000,000
- Dividends and profits distributed -
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
A00E20LS 01012025
Foreign currencies
LS 64,432,516.36 55,706,818.42
ELR. 2, 766,05 2,765.93
TPy 45.5%3.00 45,593.00
RUB 206,384.18 5,707,044.18
Doubiful debt written-off 47.4978.313,903 47,978,313,903
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REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

7.

18

29,

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenua from rendering of senvices

+  Revenue from fransportation services

+ Revenue from port operalions and
maritime services

+ Revenuwe from building operations for
affice and warehouse leasing

+ Revenue from other services

From 01/01/2025 From 01/0172024
to 30062025 to 30/06/2024
VND VKD

3 070.526,173,358 2,065,968, 092,419
6,304 866,654,263 5,199,292 685,337
2,330,052, 108,546 2 265.547,515,227
3,756,483, 168,630 7.679.547, 438,862

146,083, 9185 582

62,347, 438,503

162554, 70 214

QF 342 020,054

Revenue from constrecion contrasts - 4.216,480,973
Total 3,375,392,827,621 #,269,477,158,729

COST OF GOODS SOLD
From 010172025 From 01/01/2024
to 3062025 o 30062024
VND VMDD
Cost of goods sold 2064 534414187 2.041,224,321,848
Cost of services rendered 4,853,260,024,537 4,808, 775,613,913
+ Cast of ransportation services 20800037 583,581 2016578820077
+ Cost of port operalion and port serviced 2,643,238 506,396 2387262, 104,860
+ Cost of office and warehouse leasing 121007934 560 135790 708 232
+ Cost of athar services A2271, 178,902 A0 134,971 644
ot of construction confracts s 3,974,596, 507
7,000,065,617,636 _ 6,853,974,532 268

FINANCIAL INCONME

From 0L/01/2025 From 01/01/2024
o 3062025 to I0/06202 4
VvND VD

- Interest income from deposits and loans

- Gain on disposal of investments

- Dividends and profits received

- Foreign exchange gain arising during the period
- Foreign exchange revaluation gain on year-end
balances

- Oaher financial income

159,144, 860,626

137,410,361,030

312,390,000 34,812,149,687

20 057,744,911 28,221,845,428
44426975581 B6,413,698,558
37.424,590,979 46,377,561,265
6,024, 666,304 4,485,758,522
276,391,228,401 337,711,374,490
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30, FINANCIAL EXFENSES

From 010172025 From 010152024

o 307062025 to 3062024
YND VND
- Bormowing costs 116,796,703,546 B2 584,459 723
- Fareign exchange loss arising during the period 19,898 479,673 41 Be0044. 410
- Foreign exchange revaluation loss at the end of T1.156,161,190 18.512,684,352
the reriond
- Provision for (reversal of) financial imvestment . 65,20 755
irmpairment
- Dther finance expenses 3134,852.255 570,952,030

208,186,196,666  150.593,420,270

3. SELLING EXFENSES
From 01/01/2025 From 01701/2024

to 3062025 o 30062024

YMD YND

= Lahor cost 6,B20.965.528 7,747,661 444
- Depreciation of fixed assets 74,098,051 176,981,917
- External service expenses 54,224 005,603 47,605 317,027
= Ciher cash experses 8.001,141,302 9,921&-1-5,732

69,120,210,484 65,459,706,170
32.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

From 01/01/2025 From (1/01/2024

to 30062025 to 30/06/2024

VND YND

- Raw material costs 14,171,269,773 14,485,784,095

- Labour costs 328,500,551 689 312361.613,169
- Tools, instruments and supplies -

- Depreciation of fixed assets 22.744,107,9539 19674939305

- Taxes, fees, and charges 17.207.841,295 17.411,807 456

= Provision expenses g.1583,809,402 5.198,051,431

- Outsourced services 76.335,084,773 68,595,057,740

- Cher cash expenses 143 894,397 B%6 115,550,924 656

611,037,057,787 553,278,177,852
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33

35.

OTHER INCOME

= Proceeds from disposal of fixed assels
- Crains from loan write-offs and delbd
restructuring

= Income from compensation and
insurance claims

- Income from revaluation of assets
contributed as capital

From 01/01/2025 From 01/01/2024
to 3062025 to 300062034
VNI VD
230,276,813,605 445 879,057,807
- 382, 276,365,958

6,529,288.338

48.422981.303

3,227,765,250

- Diher income [ 5,162,344 572 38,444, 903,578
300,391 427,818 869,828.091.893
OTHER EXPENSES
From 01012025 From 0L/01/2024
o 30062025 o 07062024
VYND VD
- Residug] value and expenses from 324242251 4,876,873
dispozal of assets
- Fines, tax arrears and administrative penalties 4. TR4. 232 883 17.675,998,622
= Other expenses 21,993, 502.508 16,384, 278,298
27.101,977,642 34,065,153,793
EASIC EARNING FER SHARE
From 01/012025 From 00/A1/2024
to 30/06/2025 to J0/06/2024
Profit after tax attributable 10 the parent compiny T74,536,7T16,101  1.196,206,220,724
Profit(Loss) attributable to ordinary sharcholders 774,536, 716,101  1,196,206,220,724
(VND}
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,200,588,000 | 200, 588, (=00
outstanding during the period
Earning per share (VNID/share) 45 9596
OPERATION COST BY NATURE
From 01/01/2025 From 01012024
to M/D6Z0ZS to J006/2024
WD VNI
Rew muterial costs 851,167,221 860 071,587,272,507
Labour ¢osts 1,331,682.047 437 1,323,784,647,357
Depreciation of fixed assels RET.076,943 B350 T78.661,959.296
Texes, fees, and charges 34,377, 248731 41,867,648, 770
Provision cxpenses $.901.511,508 4,200, 980,028
Dutsourced services 1,893,895,966,100 1,798, 803,326,748
Diher cash expenses 442 393 919 548 512,379,795,197
5 549,584 859,043 £.431,287.625,903
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. OTHER INFORMATION

371

SEGMENT REPORTING

For the period from 01 Janvary 2025 to 30 June 2025

Resemue (om sale of

gouds and rendering of
servises

Crroas revenue foom asle
of gends and remderiag
of servides

Toead cost of moquisia
of fwed peests

Segment assels

Todnd nxsets

Linsllosited lahilites

Taral Halillibes

Trapsperiation Port services (hifice andil Rales of goods (hthers Totnl degmin s Eliminations Tzl
YRR warchowse leasing
aEFvics
VI W VNI YR VIR VHED WD VI
2,354,723, 779 351 3,756,483, 16630 6 a3 00K 482 2070,526, 173 358 2 1LT 458 505 370,564 49820 - 2370564 d9E 426
45,220,195, 770 1,113,244,662 254 24965904 022 5.0 TERAGE {19,923, 730,397] 1L AT0 98 B80T = 1 370,490 BR0, T}

2907 628 354 4065

Ak, L9, 6, 063,459

(16,947,208 455 870)

2,043,628, 334 465

33,244,717 607, 580

A A0, 19L016,063,450 (18,047,798, 455,870)  33.244,717,607,580
15,836,487, 778,128 (S40,634,860,232)  15.206,252,017,496

- = . . - 15836,8H7,778.128 (F40,634.860,102) _ 15,196,352.017.896
06
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371  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT'D)

For the period from 01 Janoary 2024 to 30 June 2024

Ml revemue fam sls of
pueds and rendering

services

Prufit Trom husiness
mctivitics

Total cost of aogisiion

oof fixed nmels
Scpmenl el

Tl assels

Unnlbocaed liabditks
Tatal linhilitk=

Tranaport sevice Keapori service Ohifices, Sales sctivities  Oiber actlvities Tatal Fram all Fueeption Gorand total
netivities acdivilics warehouses sepmenis
leaskng
VND VN YND VND VND VED VND
2762 TREVB6,560  36TRS4TA3RE62 16158,TOL214 2065068092419 95555401007 £,266,418,710,362 - B.26541%,710,362
246,210,157,683  1,092,388.334,001 26,755,082,981 4.743,7T0,571 22449832556 1,412.444,1 78,094 W T WYTRL T T
00,950,433,418 . TO9, 950,433,418
19,185, 8R1405,614  (DB0BSTT.AS1490)  33.244.717.607.580
= - = C T 39.ISSEALA9S614 _ (RRORSTTSSAAY)  33,244.717,607,560
- - - . 133B4.249,331,303  (406.236,015,748)  12,977.063,315,645
- - a. - T 133849331303 (M6IR6NISTAE) 12977963315 645
67
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37.

37

OTHER INFORMATION (CONT [N}
.2  RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the balances with related parties stated in the Notes above, the Corporation also has
the following transactions with related parties:

Transaction with related parties

Revenue from sale of goods

-

Da Meng Port Logistics Joint

Stock Company

Da Mang Port Tugboat JSC

Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Lid
VOSCO Apgency and Logistics JSC
[mernational Shipping and Labour
Korea Express Sai Gon Port Co,,Lid

What Viet International Transport Joint
Venture Company

- Bien Dong Logistics 18C

Vietnam Sea Transport and Chartering
15C

Vinalines Honda Logistics Viet Nam
Co., Lid

Dong Do Marine JSC

. Cai Lan International Container Terminal

VOSCO Trading and Service J3C

- SP-58A International Contaimer Services

Joint Venture Company

« SITC Diinh Yu Logistics Co, Lid

Cua Lo Port Tughoat and Maritime Service

JEC

NYK Auto logistics{ Vietnam) Co.,Ltd
Thi Wai General Port JSC

Oriental Shipping and Trading foint Stock
Company

KM Cargo Services Hai Phong Cao,, Lid
VIMC — ARIES Marine Services

Joint Venture Co., Lid

TIL International Port Hai Phong

Co, Lid

Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Company
HPH Logistics JSC

Relationship

Associate

Associate
Associate
Associale
Associate
Associate
Associate

Associate
Associate

Agsociate

Associate
Aszociate

Associate
Asspciale

Associale
Associate

Associate
Aszzociate
Associate

Azzaciate
Argncinte

Associne

Associate
Associate

From 01/01/202%  From 01012024
to 300062025 o 307062024
VND YD
IR 420,088,502 -
4,170,419,943 4,342.373,234
27.820.363 633 42,931 065,004
7013, 169,087 6,576,553 ,690
(03,594, 726 443060288
2,275, 458,604 4 B33.550,032
556,480,924 195 843 825
B.791 444 454 4,044 056,440
40 409 091 3.333,333
4.851,269,677 4,742 425 489
21,600,000 211,893 812
16,507,212, 185 i.iﬂﬂﬂ?,ﬁm
456,547 535 454 426,025
28,574, 167,053 92 414,786,274
| 816,093,396 559,793,600
142 815658 132,247,033
4279 794, 100 56227000
58,600,000 155,000,000
33,333,333 14.690,114,715
5,270,000
76,819 867 &
67,740,000 -
i 285018530
1,709.883,634 4 BGDQ2T 135
128.310,575,582 183.330,185,149
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37, OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)
37.2 RELATED PARTIES (CONT'D)

Relationship  From 01/01/2025  From 01/01/2024
to J006/2025 to 30/06/2024
VAND YND

Expenses with related parties
- Mhar Viet International Transport Associate 910,223,361 42 400,000

Joint Yenture Company
- Inlaco Saigon Associate 8,675,556 -
- Daong Do Marine JSC Associate 4 595,801,333
- Construction Consultation for Mantime Azzociate 718,345 455 1,005,307 ,000
Building JSC

- Oriental Shipping And Trading JSC Associate - 5,271,420,000
- BP-5SA Intersational Container Services — Associate 374665 B0b 16,031,300
. 8P-PSA International Port Co.,Ld Associate 1,426,353,025 2,567 988,736
- Cai Mep Intemational Terminal Co.. Ltd ~ Associate 1,278,540,034 766,707,138
- VOSCO Apency and Logistics JSC Associate 1,027,683,716 1085990332
- VOSCO Trading and Service JSC Asspeiate 15,398,078,618 15,307.607.150
- NYK Autologistic Vietnam Co., Ltd. Associate 10,350,000 -
= SITC-Dinh Vu Logistics Co,, Lid Associate 1,047,289.042 52,578,224
- Cua Lo Port Tughoat and Maritime Associate - 54,400,000
- Korea Expeess Sai Gon Port Co. Ltd Associae 1.515891,164 5,300,830,209
- Thi Vi Genesal Port J5C Azsociale 341 863 350 2859394, 796
- Dxa Nang Port Logistics 15C Associate 33,234 032251 39,551.450,125
- Da Nang Port Tugboat JSC Associate 40,589.403,720 41,944 547 908
- Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Company Associate - 115,962.967
- Cai Lan Intermational Container Associate 6,502,456,250 4547481323
= KM Cargo Services Hai Phong Associate 35,116,665 -
- TIL Hai Phong International Terminal Asaociate 3,900,000 .
- HPH Logistics Joint Stock Compary Associate 361,885 466 633,484,527
104,905,653,479 121,719,383,568

18l
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37, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTIN)
372 RELATED PARTIES (CONT I}
Income of key management personnel
FPasition From 01012025 From 00/01/2024
o 062025 to JOV0E2024
VD VD
Remuneration of key management personmel 10.255,191,308 9479785981
Mr. Le Anh Son Chairman wntil 9 July 1,419,023 428 973,147,410
2028
pember of the Board of
Mnnagement cum
General Director from §
July 2035
Tir- Mguyen Canh Tinh bembier of the Board of 1,156,387 828 1.065,957, 848
Manapsment com
General Director until %
July 2023
Chairmesn Fom 9 July
25
Mr. Do Tien Duc Member of the Board of 068,769,268 926,397,896
Management
r. Wguyen Dink Chung Sember ofthe Board of SEE, THI TR 900,957 896
Management
Wir. Do Hung Duong Member of the Board of GEI.0EL, 268 171,234,348
Manageménl
hir. Pham Anh Tuan Deputy Genernl Director 974,411 068 TS, 169,727
Mir. Le Quang Trung Deputy Geperal Direcios OO0, 138,068 OO, 136,395
Mr. Mguyen Mgoc Anh Deputy General Director Rz 800,068 906 490,060
M. Luong Dink Minh Chizf Supervisor B69, 264,028 921,881,806
Wis, Phan Thi Mhi Ha Supervisor 573,508,508 00 66T, 180
Mr. Pham Cao Nhue Supervisor F64,097.508 $30,543.415
373 OTHER INFORMATION

According to the provisions of Decree No. 126/201 TND-CP dated 16 November 2017, of the
Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and single-member limited liability
companies wholly owned by state enterprises into joint-stock companies, at the time of
officially converting into a joint-stock compeny, the Corporation is required to finalize taxes
and other obligations payable to the State budget with the Tax Authority and request the
representative agency of the state owner 1o approve the value of state capital at the time of
conversion into @ joint-stock company, scttle the proceeds from equitization, pay severance
benefits for redundant employees, and cover equitization costs. The Corporation has
completed the tax finalization process. For the remaining requirements, the Corporation has
completed the necessary documentation and is submitting it for approval by the competent
authoritics. Therelore, the figures presented in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements may change after approval from the relevant authorities.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No. Bla — DN/HN
Me. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam For the period from 01 January 2023
10 30 June 2025

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (OONTTIN)
{These roes me an el part of and showld be read n corisaction wink i cocompaniag flaamcial senemmm)

3K, COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative fgures are figures in the Corporation’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the finamcial vear ended 31 December 2024 and the reviewed interim
consolidated financial statements for the period from 01 January 2024 to 30 June 2024 of the

Corparation,

Hanoi, 29 August 2025

Preparer Head of Finance and _———6eperal Director
Accounting ]]emrl:neﬂ

Pﬁ o
W,/ 3
uMMI lbisaglnd |
Vu Thi Thank Duyen Le Duy Duong @h Son
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